



TATAN PARANA DARAMA PARANA

MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS-1963-A



REPORT DOCUMENT	TION PAGE	READ INSTRUCTIONS
REPORT NUMBER	2. GOVT ACCESSI	ON NO. 3. RECIPIENT'S CATALOG NUMBER
	10 415	0 591
. TITLE (and Subtitle)	<i>p</i>	5. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERED
A Cost Efficiency Study of	of Aviation	Master's Thesis
)fficier Career Patterns Change of Station Movemen	and Permanent nts	6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER
AUTHOR()	· _ · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(#)
William Thomas Ballew		
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND A	ODRESS	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK
Naval Postgraduate Schoo Monterey, California 939	1 4 3	
1. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRE	\$\$	12. REPORT DATE
Naval Postgraduate School	1	December 1984
fonterey, California 939	43	115
4. MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(	l different from Controlling O	Ilice) 18. SECURITY CLASS. (of this report)
		150. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE
5. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public rele 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abetract	ase; distribut	ion is unlimited.
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public rele 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract	ase; distribut	ion is unlimited.
B. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public rele 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abotract B. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	ase; distribut	IS. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public rele      DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract      SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES      KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece	ase; distribut	<pre> ISe DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE ion is unlimited. rent from Report) number)</pre>
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public rele      DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract      SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES      KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde II need Career Development Naval Career Paths, Permanent Time-on-Station, Aviati Turbulence, Aviation Man	ase; distribut entered in Block 20, 11 diffe versary and identify by block of Aviation Offi Change of Stat on Community, power Model.	<pre> IS. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE  ion is unlimited.  rent from Report)  cers, ion Movement, Career Path Network,  Scale </pre>
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)     Approved for public rele     TO STRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect     SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse eide if nece     Career Development Naval     Career Paths, Permanent     Time-on-Station, Aviati     Turbulence, Aviation Man     ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse eide if nece	ase; distribut entered in Block 20, 11 diffe entered in Block 20, 11 diffe Aviation Offi Change of Stat on Community, power Model.	<pre> Is. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE  ion is unlimited.  rent from Report)  cers, ion Movement, Career Path Network,  Care unber) </pre>
Approved for public relea Approved for public relea DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect Career Development Naval Career Paths, Permanent Time-on-Station, Aviati Turbulence, Aviation Man DISTRACT (Continue on reverse elde If nece This thesis presents an development of Naval Avi Permanent Change of Stat representations of both of aviation officers is tour length time-on-stat tour lengths and, as a r	ase; distribut entered in Block 20, 11 diffe Aviation Offi Change of Stat on Community, power Model. every and Identify by block m analysis of th ation Officers ion (PCS) move successful and presented. Ac ion statistics esult, increas	<pre>Is. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE ion is unlimited. rent from Report) cers, ion Movement, Career Path Network, Career Path Network, Career path Network, Career bith respect to their ments. A network of unsuccessful career paths tual aviation assignment showed decreasing officer ed personnel turbulence</pre>

within the Aviation Community over the period 1980 to 1984. Aviation officer retention rates were varied, along with Fleet Squadron tour lengths in a 'sensitivity analysis using the manpower model, "Aviation Officer Requirements". This analysis showed the optimal tour lengths for the Fleet Squadron tours with respect to aviation officer PCS requirements. Recommended alterations to the aviation officer career development paths were made to reduce the number of officer PCS movements without penalty to individual members' careers. <u>Recommended confect</u>

5-N 0102- LF- 014- 6601

£.,

A Cost Efficiency Study of Aviation Officer Career Patterns and Permanent Change of Station Movements

by

W. Thomas Ballew Commander, United States Navy B.S. Purdue University, 1969

Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN MANAGEMENT

from the

NAVAL POSTGRADUATE SCHOOL December 1984

Author:

í C

Approved by:

185

Paul R. Milch, Thesis Advisor

Paul M. Carrick, Second Reader

Win Willis R. Greer,

Chairman Department of Administrative Science

Kneale T. Marshall, Dean of Information and Policy Sciences

ABSTRACT

This thesis presents an analysis of the professional career development of Naval Aviation Officers with respect to their Permanent Change of Station (PCS) movments. A network of representations of both successful and unsuccessful career paths of aviation officers is presented. Actual aviation assignment tour length time-on-station statistics showed decreasing officer tour lengths and, as a result, increased personnel turbulence within the Aviation Community over the period 1980 to 1984. Aviation officer retention rates were varied, along with Fleet Squadron tour lengths in a sensitivity analysis using the manpower model, "Aviation Officer Requirements". This analysis showed the optimal tour lengths for the Fleet Squadron tours with respect to aviation officer PCS requirements. Recommended alterations to the aviation officer career development paths were made to reduce the number of officer PCS movements without penalty to individual members' careers.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

.

I.	INTRODUCTION	11
	A. AVIATION COMMUNITY BACKGROUND	12
	B. PERMANENT CHANGE OF STATION (PCS)	15
	C. PROBLEM STATEMENT	17
11.	AVIATION OFFICER COMMUNITY	22
	A. ADDITIONAL QUALIFICATION DESIGNATION (AQD) CODES	22
	B. AVIATION COMMUNITY SIZE	24
	C. INVENTORY AGING	25
111.	AVIATION OFFICER CAREER PATHS	29
	A. CAREER PATH NETWORK	29
	B. IMPORTANCE OF TIMING IN TOUR SEQUENCE	37
	C. IDENTIFICATION OF THE MAJOR AVIATION CAREER POINTS	41
	D. ACTUAL MOVEMENT PATTERNS	42
IV.	PCS COSTS	55
	A. NAVY WIDE PCS COSTS	55
	B. PCS POLICY INFLUENCES NUMBER OF MOVES	56
	C. AVIATION COMMUNITY PCS	59
	D. TOUR LENGTHS AND PCS TURBULENCE	62
۷.	AVIATION OFFICER REQUIREMENTS SIMULATION MODEL	65
	A. SIMULATION MODEL RESULTS	65
	B. RETENTION RATES VERSUS FLEET SQUADRON TOUR LENGTHS	66
	C. MODEL APPLICATION	69
VI.	RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REDUCED PCS MOVEMENT	71
	A. INITIAL FLEET SQUADRON TOUR AND AVIATION MINIMUM SERVICE REQUIREMENT	71

B. E F	FFECT OF INCREASING LENGTH OF INITIAL	73
C. A	CTUAL AT SEA TIME IN LENGTHENED INITIAL TOUR	75
D. F	IVE TOUR SEQUENCE TO AVIATION COMMAND	76
VII. CONCL	USIONS	80
APPENDIX A	- TRENDS IN PCS MOVES AND COSTS BY MOVE TYPE FOR THE ENTIRE U.S. NAVY FOR FYs 1980 TO 1984	82
APPENDIX B	- LISTING OF PCS ENTITLEMENTS	85
APPENDIX C	- SCHEDULE OF ENTITLEMENTS AS A PRECENTAGE OF THE TOTAL NAVY PCS BUDGET	86
APPENDIX D	- "AVIATION OFFICER REQUIREMENTS" EXAMPLE OUTPUT DATA: THIRTY MONTH MULTIPLE RUN SUMMARY	87
LIST OF REF	erences	112
INITIAL DIS	TRIBUTION LIST	114

**P**\_\_\_\_

Ŀ

# LIST OF TABLES

1.1	DEFINITIONS OF PCS MOVE TERMS	18
2.1	EXAMPLES OF ADDITIONAL QUALIFICATION DESIGNATION CODES	23
2.2	SQUADRON TYPES	24
2.3	CURRENT AVIATION INVENTORY	25
2.4	TRAINING REQUIREMENTS FOR PILOTS/NFOs	25
3.1	AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	30
3.2	AVIATION ASSIGNMENT CODING	36
3.3	CURRENT AVIATION TOUR LENGTH	37
3.4	AVIATION ASSIGNMENT SEQUENCE	39
3.5	POSSIBLE TOUR SEQUENCE OF SUCCESSFUL AVIATION COMMAND SELECTEE (05)	44
3.6	POSSIBLE TOUR SEQUENCE OF AVIATOR (05) NON-COMMAND SELECTEE; RETIRES AS 05	47
3.7	POSSIBLE TOUR SEQUENCE OF AVIATOR (04) NON-DUE COURSE; RETIRES AS 04	51
3.8	POSSIBLE TOUR SEQUENCE OF LIEUTENANT AVIATOR (03) NON-DUE COURSE, SEPARATES FROM SERVICE	52
4.1	COST OF AVIATION PCS THROUGH THE GRADE 05 (\$000)	59
4.2	NUMBER OF AVIATION COST MOVES THROUGH GRADE 05	60
4.3	NUMBER OF AVIATION NO-COST MOVES THROUGH GRADE 05	61
4.4	TOTAL NUMBER OF AVIATION COST AND NO-COST MOVES Through grade 05	61
4.5	NAVY OFFICER FREQUENCY OF TRANSFER	62
4.6	AVIATION SUBCOMMUNITY TOUR LENGTH AVERAGE (MOS)	64
5.1	AVIATION OFFICER REQUIREMENTS/NUMBER OF PCS MOVES PREDICTED AS FLEET SQUADRON TOURS 13, 14, 15 LENGTH IS CHANGED	67

5.2	AVIATION OFFICER RETENTION RATESIN Percentage and optimal tour lengths	70
6.1	AT SEA TIME FOR THE PROPOSED 4½ YEAR FLEET SQUADRON TOUR (DEPLOY IMMEDIATELY)	75
6.2	AT SEA TIME FOR THE PROPOSED 4½ YEAR FLEET SQUADRON TOUR (DEPLOY AFTER 6 MONTHS)	76
6.3	POSSIBLE FIVE TOUR SEQUENCES OF AVIATION COMMAND SELECTEES	78

ć

# LIST OF FIGURES

.

1.1	Aviation Officer Professional Development Path	16
2.1	Inventory Aging	27
3.1	Aviation Requirements Model Matrix	31
3.2	Aviation Officer Career Paths	33
3.3	Aviation Officer Career Structure	35
3.4	Timing of Billet Categories	38
3.5	Tour Sequence of Successful Aviation Command Selectee	43
3.6	Tour Sequence of Non-Command Selectee Commander	48
3.7	Tour Sequence of Lieutenant Commander Retiree	50
3.8	Tour Sequence of Lieutenant Aviator Separatee	53
4.1	Percentage of People Moving for Each Service (Excluding Accessions and Separations)	58
6.1	Early Tour Sequence (Current and Proposed) with Aviation Minimum Service Requirement	72
6.2	Tour Sequence of Five Tour Aviation Command Selectees	77

1.1

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The author would like to thank the members of the OP-13 and NMPC-46 staffs who provided assistance in the preparation of this thesis. Special thanks to Mr. F.E. O'Conner of Information Spectrum, Inc., author of the model, "Aviation Officer Requirements", and Ms. Charlotte Byers' for her computer programming expertise, time, and patience.

# I. INTRODUCTION

The development of future Aviation Officer careers will become more difficult as Permanent Change of Station (PCS) funds become harder to obtain. Faced with huge two hundred billion dollar deficits, both Congress and the Executive branch will be looking at virtually every appropriation line item to determine where budget cuts can be taken. The Defense Department, and specifically the Department of the Navy is committed to the build-up of a 600 Ship Navy by the end of the 1980s decade. As ship, aircraft, and weapon procurement costs show no sign of slowing their rate of growth, the area where Naval military budget reductions are likely to come are Congressional appropriations for Personnel. It has become an annual occurrence at budget hearings, both in the House and Senate, to discuss the Navy's personnel movement policies. These policies, along with associated increases in funding requirements, are coming under greater scrutiny each budget year as the force is increased to man the additional ships and aircraft squadrons.

Aviation is one of three major warfare specialties that an officer can pursue in making the Naval Service a career. The others are Surface Warfare and Submarine Warfare. These three warfare specialties, together, make up what is known as the Unrestricted Line Officer (URL) Corps. URL officers are eligible to command combatant ships and aircraft squadrons, whereas, the other officer branches of the Naval Service, the Restricted Line (RL) and Staff Corps, are not. The distinguishing feature about Aviation URL officers is that they are all

involved in some facet of Naval aviation as a primary career pursuit [Ref. 1:p. 37].

The Service expects and demands of its aviation officers: demonstration of expert aviation skills, adroit personnel management of more junior officers and enlisted personnel, and professional development gained through increasingly challenging job assignments, graduate schooling and service college. Additionally, those aviators successful in their career performance, particularly during their aviation department head assignment, are selected to head the various units and air squadrons as Commanding Officers.

This thesis will explore the conflict that has developed between the aviation officers' need to change assignments in order to gain the necessary professional development for higher grade promotion and command selection, and the continual pressure to reduce costs in the movement of aviation officer personnel.

#### A. AVIATION COMMUNITY BACKGROUND

The Naval Aviation Community is known as the 1300 or 13XX Community because it is made up of pilots designated 1310 or 1315 (depending on whether regular or reserve), and Naval Flight Officers (NFOs) designated 1320 or 1325. The Aviation Community consists of approximately one-half of the Unrestricted Line Officers in the Navy. Every aviator has a detailer whose job it is to look out for the individual interests of those aviators assigned to him. Aviation detailing duties are divided up by aviation subcommunities. The detailers provide counseling and make nomination assignments for upcoming job or "billet" vacancies for

their constituencies. This is done at or near the end of an assignment, the projected rotation date (PRD). The individual aviator usually gets in touch with his detailer six to nine months prior to his PRD to find out what openings will be available. These job openings are known as the "slate". Each detailer is given only a few specific openings to The detailer looks at his assignee's officer performance records fill. and discusses or "nominates" an individual for a specific billet. The detailer then takes the nomination to the Placement Officer, who initially placed the job opening on the slate. A Placement Officer is much like a detailer, but his job is to look out for the interest of the command in which the job opening is occurring. The Placement officer then evaluates the nominee attempting to match his past demonstrated performance with the future assignment. Better performance enables an individual to be offered and assigned to more challenging and career enhancing billets.

An aviator when discussing possible assignments with his detailer must face what is termed the "triad of detailing" in selection of his next billet. The "triad" consists of (1) the needs of the Navy, (2) the individual's needs, and (3) the individual's desires. The needs of the Navy are foremost. If the Navy is short of aviators because retention is low, then the Aviation Training Command tends to become a driving The individual up for assignment may be offered only one requirement. type of assignment, in this case, the Training Command. The individual's needs are next in importance. The detailer will counsel guide the individual into billets that are necessary and for professional growth and development. They will also advise on billet

sequence and timing of assignments within a career, which is discussed in detail in Chapter III, Section B. Lastly, the individual's personal desires are considered in the assignment process. These personal desires vary for each individual aviator and cover everything from location, type billet, squadron or staff, and sea or shore assignment. The triad is not an equally balanced system but the detailer's job is to attempt to strike some balance among the three constraints.

Aviators come from a variety of commissioning sources: Naval Academy, Naval Reserve Officer Training Corps, Aviation Officer Candidate School, and Officer Candidate School. Members of the Aviation Community undergo initial training from twelve to eighteen months duration in earning their "wings".

Once a Naval Aviator completes his/her flight training, an "initial obligation" or payback tour is incurred due to the high cost of this training. These costs are currently quoted at approximately three quarters of a million dollars for each individual pilot [Ref. 2]. The payback tour length has varied over time, but it has been getting longer in recent years due to these increasing training costs. It is currently running at five years of active duty service obligation from the date of flight training completion.

After a pilot receives his/her wings, and depending on the current needs of the Service, (and to some extent on personal preference) these individuals are issued their first set of orders for more advanced flight training. This advanced training is done in actual operational aircraft at a Fleet Readiness Squadron (FRS).

The length of the typical FRS training is six months. The new aviators have the job of learning to fly the aircraft they will be flying in the fleet. Additionally, they will be introduced to the specific missions and capabilities of that aircraft.

Figure 1.1 from <u>The Unrestricted Line Officer Guidebook</u> is provided to show an illustration of typical aviation officer careers. Chapter III will go into greater depth analyzing the aviation officer's career. The sequence of billets as shown in Figure 1.1 for the successful officer is far from being rigid. As stated in the CNO Study Directive [Ref. 3] for the Officer Corps Management Studies, current officer rotational policy centers on:

- 1. fleet readiness, which depends on getting the right officer into the right billet:
- 2. individual officer preference; and
- 3. PCS cost considerations

#### B. PERMANENT CHANGE OF STATION (PCS)

As an aviation officer progresses through a sequence of billets during his career, it is necessary for him to move from one assigned tour to another. More often than not this move involves a change in geographic location. An area where much has been done to reduce relocation costs has been the Navy's "homesteading" program. For example, an aviation officer completing a Ship's Company Afloat tour aboard one of the aircraft carriers based in San Diego could rotate ashore to an FRS located in the area or to one of several Shore Staff billets. Homesteading, however, can only provide partial relief to the problem of PCS cost, because movement to different locations is often

# AVIATION OFFICER PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PATH



Figure 1.1 Aviation Officer Professional Development Path

16

1. S. S. S. S. S.

required of aviation officer personnel after a completed assignment due to geographic dispersion of the Naval Air Stations.

Before proceeding further a list of PCS movement terms and their definitions are provided in Table 1.1 [Ref. 4:pp. 1-3]. The Naval Service has a limited amount of money for funding PCS moves as appropriated and authorized by Congress. Because of this constraint the Naval Military Personnel Command (NMPC) must spend the budgeted money wisely. Quoting from the Senate Appropriations Committee discussions on the Military Personnel Navy FY-85 request for Permanent Change of Station funding,

Permanent change of station program growth [has been unfavorably noted;] The Committee is also aware that the average planned tour length for Navy members has been decreasing, and in fiscal year 1985 it is substantially shorter than in fiscal year 1982. The Committee does not support shorter tour lengths and recommends lessening the Navy's request for funding by \$5,200,000.00 to encourage the Navy to reverse this trend.

However, the reduction of PCS moves is in apparent conflict with the Aviation Officers' career needs, among them the officer's need to command. In order for an officer to be selected for aviation command, he must have met certain operational requirements during various assignments, demonstrated competency in Aviation Warfare and leadership capabilities, as well as exercised sound judgement in his various duties during his career. This varied experience is gained only by regular rotation between sea and shore assignments.

#### C. PROBLEM STATEMENT

This thesis will review and recommend improvements in the efficiency of officer career paths with respect to PCS changes, while still meeting

## TABLE 1.1

#### DEFINITIONS OF PCS MOVE TERMS

PCS: Permanent change-of-station by an individual officer. Unlike the other services, PCS moves in the Navy include retours in the same geographic area where little or no cost to the Navy is involved.

Operational moves (OP): PCS moves where travel across ocean waters is not required; e.g., moves within CONUS (Continental United States) or moves within Europe by land travel.

Rotation moves(ROT): PCS moves where transport across ocean waters is required; e.g., moves between CONUS and Europe or moves between Korea and Japan.

Non-accession Training moves(TRA): PCS moves to/from training sites where training duration is 20 weeks or longer (Travel for training of less than 20 weeks may be part of OP, ROT, or TRA moves).

<u>Mandatory</u> moves: Accession, Separation, and Organized Unit moves as explained below:

Accession moves: All moves made by the new officer to reach his or her first <u>permanent active duty station</u>, including moves to initial entry point in the Navy, training, and to the first duty station.

<u>Separation</u> moves: Moves made by the individual officer when he or she separates from the Navy.

Organized Unit moves: Moves made by the individual officer as a part of a whole unit moving (e.g., transfer of a ship or Squadron to another homeport).

**PRD:** Projected Rotation Date is the date when the individual officer is due to make a PCS move in accordance with the prescribed tour length policy.

minimum essential career development needs within the Aviation Officer Community. The President's Private Sector Survey on Cost Control (PPSSCS), 1983, known as the Grace Commission [Ref. 5:pp. 165-166], also noted increased PCS cost in the Navy Officer Corps. Among the many recommendations the Commission stated that,

The heart of this consideration is better planning of which billets to fill, longer tenure in jobs so that greater depth of knowledge can be obtained, less frequency in the number of moves to be arranged, and better service to the Navy.

Inherent in better management of the careers of officer personnel are several benefits:

- o Improvements in individual productivity [efficiency]
- D Improvements in overall Navy readiness [effectiveness]
- Reduction of pipeline training [efficiency]

Reduction in costs associated with rotations [cost/benefit]

The PCS movement of the aviation officer has become a military way of life. The Grace Commission's charter was to compare the military methods with good cost effective ways of doing business in the civilian sector where there exists a bottom line, namely "profit". This same theme of comparison with civilian business comes through in Arima's discussion of civilian policy on movement in his study <u>Organizational Handling of Midcareer Moves: The Reactions of Navy Line</u> Officers [Ref. 6:p. 1].

While frequent moves were accepted as an inevitable part of managerial careers in the rapid growth of industries after World War II, and continuing into the '60s, there has been a decline in the frequency of moves since the decade of the '70s (Korn, 1974).

J. Ronald Fox in his book, <u>Arming America</u> [Ref. 7:pp. 77-78] points out,

It is always difficult within any bureaucracy to measure the effectiveness of specific management practices. This is particularly true in the Department of Defense, which operates without the profit incentive and which, even in peacetime, does not use any of the normal commercial techniques for measuring adequacy or efficiency. In most

small and medium-sized commercial business operations, the and efficiency of an operation can be measured effectiveness annually, and sometimes monthly. In large business organizations, the full effect of top-level decisions may not be fully observed a number of years. But even in these organizations, cost for effectiveness is measured regularly, in order to analyze the impact of management decisions on long-term profits and the efficiency of ongoing operations.

In a formal management study done in 1965 for the services, one of the main points the report cited as a serious problem was too frequent turnover of military personnel. Again in 1971 the Comptroller General issued reports to Congress citing turnover of military personnel. The recommendations included in the 1965 report were repeated in 1971 [Ref. 8].

Before taking over as Secretary of Defense, James Schlesinger is quoted as commenting about the Department of Defense that, "Large hierarchical organizations tend to be remarkably efficient mechanisms for the suppression of new ideas and alternatives" [Ref. 9:p. 105]. That may explain why the Navy has resisted the increase in tour lengths for decades, a recommendation that was cited in numerous DOD management studies:

o 1965 Management Study

- o 1971 Comptroller General report
- o 1983 Grace Commission report
- 1984 DOD IG Audit on Postgraduate Education

As Arima [Ref. 6:p. 8] in 1981 pointed out, a positive relationship has been consistently found between job satisfaction and job tenure. People are more satisfied in an assignment with some amount of stability. CNO after CNO have continually pointed out that the most valuable weapon against a perceived threat is the Naval personnel who man the ships, and aircraft. Yet, given that forty-four percent of the aviation community moved this past fiscal year, as will be discussed in Chapter IV, Section D one gets the picture of a highly unstable organization. If profit was the Navy's motive, bankruptcy could be close at hand.

With a President and Administration facing deficits of upwards of \$200 billion dollars and committed to a 600 ship Navy with inherent personnel increases, cost cutting and efficiency measures are to become the rule. The armed service that can propose the most in reduction of cost and increased efficiency measures will be the winner in the scramble for the reduced funds available. The game will become, "who can out-'Grace' the Grace Commission".

## II. AVIATION OFFICER COMMUNITY

#### A. ADDITIONAL QUALIFICATION DESIGNATION (AQD) CODES

In most studies involving Naval aviation careers the various aviation missions are usually broken down into five major categories that may be thought of as subcommunities within the Aviation Community [Ref. 10:p. 29]. These subcommunities are:

o JET PILOT: Pilots of jet powered aircraft
o JET NFO : Naval Flight Officers of jet powered aircraft
o PROP PILOT: Pilots of propeller driven aircraft
o PROP NFO : Naval Flight Officers of propeller driven aircraft
o HELO PILOT: Pilots of helicopter type aircraft

The five subcommunities are further broken down into unique aviation warfare specialties which in turn imply specific type of aircraft. The Navy keeps track of these specialties by assigning Additional Qualification Designation (AQD) codes which are found in section C of the Navy's <u>Manual of Officer Manpower and Personnel Classifications</u>. [Ref. 11] Examples of these AQD codes and the relevant aircraft types can be found in Table 2.1.

These five categories are essentially distinct since rarely does an individual aviator cross over into a different major category. This may happen when a major change occurs in aircraft type. For example, when the propeller driven Antisubmarine Warfare (ASW) carrier aircraft, the S-2E/G, was phased out of the Navy's inventory and replaced by the jet powered carrier aircraft, the S-3A, the majority of the pilots and the small number of NFOs involved transitioned to the jet community.

# TABLE 2.1

## EXAMPLES OF ADDITIONAL QUALIFICATION DESIGNATION CODES

MISSION CLASS	AQD CODE	MISSION/TYPE	AIRCFT. IDENT.
	JET AI	RCRAFT (PILOT/NFO)	
ATTACK	DA 2	LIGHT ATTACK	<b>A-</b> 7
	DA4	MEDIUM ATTACK	A-6
	DA7	LIGHT ATTACK	FA-18
FIGHTER	DB2	FTR/BOMBER	F-4
	DB4	FTR/BOMBER	F-14
	DB6	FTR/BOMBER	FA-18
TRANSPORT	DE 3	HEAVY JET	C-9
ASW	DF2	CARRIER ASW	<b>S-3</b>
	PROPELLER	AIRCRAFT(PILOT/NFO)	
ASW	DJ4	ASW PATROL	P-3C
TRANSPORT	DQ4	TRANSPORT HVY	C-130
	DS2	CARRIER TRANS	C-2
COMBAT SUPPORT	DL3	CARRIER AEW	E-2C
	HEL	ICOPTER (PILOT)	
ASW	DV 2	ASW (LAMPS)	SH-2
	DV4	ASW (LAMPS)	SH-60
	DV1	ASW	SH-3
COMBAT SUPPORT	DW4	SAR/LOGISTICS	UH-3
ASW TRANSPORT COMBAT SUPPORT ASW COMBAT SUPPORT	DJ4 DQ4 DS2 DL3 HEL DV2 DV4 DV1 DW4	ASW PATROL TRANSPORT HVY CARRIER TRANS CARRIER AEW ICOPTER(PILOT) ASW (LAMPS) ASW (LAMPS) ASW SAR/LOGISTICS	P-3C C-130 C-2 E-2C SH-2 SH-60 SH-3 UH-3

23

The Aviation Requirements Model [Ref. 12:pp. 29-30] developed by F.E. O'Conner handled the AQD problem by dividing the community by squadron types into the logical categories given in Table 2.2. There are some major differences in the career paths of officers of the different warfare specialties listed in Table 2.2. These will be discussed further in Chapter III.

## TABLE 2.2

### SQUADRON TYPES

#### PILOTS

NFO

LIGHT ATTACK FIGHTER MEDIUM ATTACK ELECTRONIC WARFARE CARRIER BASED ASW FORCE SUPPORT-JET EARLY WARNING MARITIME PATROL ELECTRONIC WARFARE (VQ) FORCE SUPPORT-PROP HELICOPTER ASW LAMPS MK I LAMPS MK III FORCE SUPPORT-HELO

FIGHTER MEDIUM ATTACK ELECTRONIC WARFARE CARRIER BASED ASW FORCE SUPPORT-JET EARLY WARNING MARITIME PATROL ELECTRONIC WARFARE (VQ) FORCE SUPPORT-PROP

## **B. AVIATION COMMUNITY SIZE**

At the end of August, 1984 the aviation officer inventory had the make-up shown in Table 2.3. (Data supplied by OP-130.) The Pilot Training Requirements (PTR) for fiscal years 1984-89 are projected to be as shown in Table 2.4. (Data supplied by OP-130.) The thirteenth Carrier Air Wing comes up to manning levels this year, and a fourteenth is scheduled for FY 87; hence the increased PTR through FY 89 in Table 2.4.

## TABLE 2.3

## CURRENT AVIATION INVENTORY

GRADE	PILOTS	NFOs	TOTAL
05	1737	632	2369
04	2 544	1389	3933
03	3269	1906	5175
02	1712	910	2622
01	175	<u>173</u>	<u>348</u>
TOTALS	9437	5010	14447

#### TABLE 2.4

## TRAINING REQUIREMENTS FOR PILOTS/HFOS

FY	PILOTS	NFOs	TOTAL
84	869	475	1344
85	925	512	1437
86	985	520	1505
		• •	
89	1060	534	1594

## C. INVENTORY AGING

When an officer leaves a billet position the Navy cannot go out and advertise for a like replacement. Also if a position calls for a Lieutenant Commander (04), an Ensign (01) cannot be expected to replace him. Thus the Navy is forced into what is termed, "growing its own", which is quite different from the options the civilian community has in filling its vacancies. It currently takes four years of commissioned service for an aviation officer to attain the grade of Lieutenant, a total of nine years for Lieutenant Commander and fifteen years of commissioned time for Commander. The Navy does, however, have a policy of detailing a small percentage of officers of each grade up one grade or down one grade to fill vacancies when grade imbalances become acute. A Lieutenant filling a Lieutenant Commander billet would be in a career enhancing position, but generally a Lieutenant would try to avoid being detailed to a Lieutenant Junior Grade billet.

Figure 2.1 is a duplicate of the figure shown in the model "Aviation Officer Requirements" quoted in Section A. In this figure, the horizontal axis represents the years of service since aviation designation, which is the point indicated by the origin. The vertical axis indicates the number of aviation officers in a service cohort as a function of time. As the graph shows, this number is represented by a polygonal line. The negative slope of the line at any point in time is the rate of aviation officers are leaving the Naval service. The steeper the slope of the line, the greater the number of aviation officers leaving. The Minimum Service Requirement (MSR) point is the time at which an aviator has completed his initial military service requirement. It is approximately at the five year point. This minimum obligated service is incurred at the time of completion of flight training. The "retention rate" of Naval Officers is defined as the ratio of the number of Naval officers at two years after MSR (referred to as MSR+2) to the number of Naval officers at one year prior to MSR (referred to as MSR-1). Of course, a separate retention rate may be computed for any branch of the Navy officer Corps, e.g., the Aviation Community. A Career Stable Point (CSP) occurs approximately twelve years after aviation designation. The slope of the line from CSP to the eighteenth year of designation is relatively flat, thus indicating that very few aviation officers are leaving the service during this period.



The slope again increases beyond the eighteenth year as aviation officers reach the twenty year retirement point. [Ref. 12:pp. 17-20]

In Figure 2.1, 1000 aviation designations occur at time zero. With a fifty percent aviation retention rate as shown in this example, 930 aviation officers are remaining at the MSR point. However, at the MSR+2 point, only 480 aviation officers remain in the service due to low retention rate in this example. At the Career Stable Point (twelve years of aviation service), 310 aviators remain. Using a forty-five percent Command selection opportunity, an original cohort of one thousand can expect approximately 130 perspective Commanding Officer selections by the eighteenth year point in time.

One of the aviation detailer's jobs is to keep as many of their constituents as possible competitive for officer grade promotion and eventual command screen selection. However, an aviator is in the Naval service nine years before any real quality cut is made. This occurs during the Lieutenant Commander promotion board. As seen in the preceeding paragraph, the 130 Commanding Officer selections represent approximately thirteen percent of an original cohort of one thousand. Civilian management studies of the military personnel movement system point out what seems to them as "gross inefficiencies" and resulting high "unnecessary" PCS costs in moving about these large numbers of aviation officers who stay in service less than nine years [Ref. 13:p. 5]. This is precisely where meaningful dollar savings in PCS funds would occur if policy changes were to be made.

#### **111. AVIATION OFFICER CAREER PATHS**

# A. CAREER PATH NETWORK

As is shown by Figure 1.1, there are several possibile sequences of assignments for an aviation officer. After initial flight training, about ninety-five percent of all aviators go to their initial fleet squadron assignment. The other five percent are retained in the Aviation Training Command as instructors for their first tour and are called "SERGRADS", Selective Retained Graduates. SERGRADs currently number only about 160 and their category is being phased out as both pilot and NFO retention statistics enjoy historic highs. If and when retention drops the SERGRAD program remains a viable option as a quick fix for the shortage of aviator instructors.

O'Conner's Aviation Oficer Requirements Model, as mentioned in Chapter II, developed some general assignment rules with regard to aviation community career paths [Ref. 14:p. 17]. These are:

- 1. SERGRAD instructors are guaranteed a follow-on Fleet assignment;
- 2. Fleet Readiness Squadrons (FRS) are assigned only officers rotating from fleet squadrons;
- 3. Aviators' will only have one Aviation Training Command assignment below the grade of 04;
- A Maximum of two successive out-of-cockpit assignments are permitted;
- 5. Aviation Officers begin their second aviation fleet tour no later than the 12th year from aviation designation.

These general assignment rules have been verified by OPNAV130 personnel. An exception to the general assignment rule cited in number four above is when a Lieutenant aviation officer attends Postgraduate schooling. In most cases, after this officer completes his education, he rotates to a non-flying afloat assignment, and then serves in a validated education required billet. In this case, a total of three successive out-ofcockpit tours would have been served.

In O'Conner's model there are seven general areas an aviator may be assigned. These are listed in Table 3.1. Separation from the Service is represented as the eigth area.

### TABLE 3.1

#### AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS

# ASSIGNMENT TYPE

FIRST DIGIT

FLEET SQUADRON	1
FLEET READINESS SQUADRON	2
AVIATION TRAINING COMMAND	3
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT SQUADRON	4
AFLOAT (SHIP'S COMPANY)	5
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	6
OTHER	7
SEPARATION	8

Referring to Figure 3.1 each tour is represented by a two-digit number as was developed by O'Conner. The Assignment Type as given in Table 3.1 and also shown on the left hand margin in Figure 3.1 is represented by the first digit of the tour number. The second digit in this two-digit number refers to the order of the tour in the sequence of tours of an individual aviator's career. This way the number 1 in the second digit refers to the first tour assignment after the initial training which is labeled with a 0. Therefore, tour 31 means Aviation Training Command as a first tour. This is the SERGRAD assignment

Matri
Model
Requirements
Aviation
3.1
Figure

FLEET 2 READINESS SQUADRON	3 TRAINING COMMAND	4 RESEARCH & DEVELOPHENT	1 FLEET (10) squadron	5 AFLOAT	6 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPHENT	7 OTHER	8 SEPARATION	TOUR NO. 0
(1)	<b>(F)</b>	(4)	3	(5)	(9			ŗ
(1)	32	<b>(4)</b>	(1)	(25	(62	(1)	83	2
(1)	(5)	<b>(43</b>	(1)	(6)	(9)	<b>(1)</b>	(8)	£
24	36	<b>44</b>	14	<b>\$</b>	(9)	74)	(84)	4
<b>(23</b> )	6	<b>(4)</b>	<b>(1)</b>	(53)	٩	<b>(1)</b>	(8)	ŝ
<b>5</b> 0	36	<b>99</b>	( <b>1</b>	<b>(9</b> )	99	<b>1</b> 0	<b>99</b>	Ŷ

31

ľ

previously discussed. Tour 11 represents the first Operational Fleet Squadron assignment immediately following initial flight training (tour 10). Tour 53 represents an afloat assignment (non-flying) as a third tour in the sequence of assigned tours of an aviator. Tour 24 represents an assignment in a Fleet Readiness Squadron during the fourth tour assignment. This representation of aviation officer career paths will be used in Section D to explain actual movement patterns of many individual careers.

Figure 3.2 is another way of depicting aviation career pathways. further development of Morris' using idea [Ref. 15:p. 69]. Morris' career depiction method has the initial advantage over O'Conner's in that career path lines do not crisscross over one another causing confusion in following a specific career pattern. However, the two-digit tour numbering system is maintained in Figure 3.2. As an example, a successful aviation career pattern using Figure 3.2 is presented here.

The initial box labeled 10, in Figure 3.2, represents the initial flight training tour and is the starting point of an aviation career. The first tour after training, Fleet Squadron (tour 11), is the primary route taken by the majority of aviation officers. Only primary career path routes are shown in this figure. Other career path routes do exist and will be shown and discussed later using Figure 3.3. From tour 11, in Figure 3.2, the successful aviation officer may rotate to shore duty to a tour at a Fleet Readiness Squadron (tour 22). From tour 22, the career pathway route may take this hypothetical officer to sea again aboatd an afloat unit in a billet not involving actual flying (tour 53).



, and

Figure 3.2 Aviation Officer Career Paths
From tour 53, this aviation officer may rotate ashore to Professional Development (tour 64) at the Naval War College. From tour 64 rotation back to sea in the Aviation Department Head assignment is represented by tour 15. Aviation Command screening having been successful in this example allows this officer, to rotate into the billet of XO/CO (tour 36) and serve as Commanding Officer of an Aviation Training Command squadron. Other similar career paths may be followed using Figure 3.2.

Figure 3.3 displays the same primary career pathway information as Figure 3.2, but the less utilized pathways are added with these added tours depicted by triangular shaped boxes and the corresponding pathways shown as dashed connecting lines. The triangle 31 stands for the SERGRAD Training Command assignment. From there, following the dotted line pathway to triangle 12, the SERGRAD officer does his initial fleet squadron during the second tour. It is because of this SERGRAD pathway that all other assignments along dotted lines are possible. Tour 52. Afloat Second Tour, is missing in Figures 3.2 and 3.3 to indicate that this pathway is "barred" to the aviator coming from the initial fleet squadron (tour 11). Continuing one possible SERGRAD pathway through to completion, after the Fleet Squadron (tour 12) is complete, this officer is assigned to a Research and Development Squadron (tour 43). The following tour, this officer is rotated to a Ship's Company assignment as a staff officer (tour 54). After the Afloat tour (tour 54), a subsequent sea duty assignment involving flying in a Fleet Squadron (tour 15) is completed. In this example, this officer failed to select as a Commanding Officer during the Aviation Command screening process, and was assigned to a shore staff billet (tour 76).



Figure 3.3 Aviation Officer Career Structure

35

# TABLE 3.2

• •

# AVALATION ASSIGNMENT CODING

TWO-DIGIT CODE	AVIATION ASSIGNMENT	O <b>FFICER</b> G <b>RAD</b> E
10	INITIAL FLIGHT TRAINING	ENS
11	FIRST OPERATIONAL FLYING TOUR (FLEET SQUADRON	) LTJG/LT
22	FLEET REPLACEMENT SQUADRON (INSTRUCTOR)	LT
32	AVIATION TRAINING COMMAND (INSTRUCTOR)	LT
42	RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT SQD (SHORE)	LT
62	POSTGRADUATE SCHOOL	LT
72	STAFF DUTY (SHORE)	LT
13	SECOND OPERATIONAL FLYING TOUR (NON-DEPT. HEA	D) LT/LCDR
53	AFLOAT (STAFF, SHIP'S COMPANY)	LT/LCDR
14	DEPARTMENT HEAD (FLEET SQUADRON)	LCDR
24	FRS INSTRUCTOR	LCDR
34	AVIATION TRAINING COMMAND (INSTRUCTOR)	LCDR
44	RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT SQD (SHORE)	LCDR
64	POSTGRADUATE SCHOOL/JR. SERVICE COLLEGE	LCDR
74	STAFF DUTY (SHORE)	LCDR
15	DEPARTMENT HEAD (FLEET SQUADRON)	LCDR
65	SERVICE COLLEGE	LCDR/CDR
75	STAFF DUTY (SHORE)	LCDR/CDR
16	COMMANDING OFFICER (AVIATION TRAINING COMMAND	) CDR
36	COMMANDING OFFICER (FLEET SQUADRON)	CDR
56	NON-SCREENED (COMMANDER AFLOAT)	CDR
76	NON-SCREENED (COMMANDER STAFF DUTY)	CDR

Table 3.2 is a detailed listing of most aviation assignments showing the two-digit coding system and the probable officer grade at each tour.

## B. IMPORTANCE OF TIMING IN TOUR SEQUENCE

É

Some discussion is in order as to the length of various tours. Article 1820180 of the <u>Naval Military Personnel Manual</u> [Ref. 16] states in paragraphs 9 and 10:

"Normal tours of sea duty for line officers are:

- a. Two years for Commanders and above
- b. Two to three years for officers below the grade of Commander;

"Normal tours of shore duty for line officers are:

- a. Three years for Captains and above
- b. Two and one-half to three years for Commanders
- c. Two to three years for officers below the grade of Commander"

These constraints, therefore, leave some flexibility as to tour lengths for the majority of URL officers, including Aviators and NFOs. Detailing officers write orders for their aviation officer constituents with tour lengths as summarized by Table 3.3.

#### TABLE 3.3

#### CURRENT AVIATION TOUR LENGTH

TOUR	YEARS	GRADE
FIRST OPERATIONAL FLYING TOUR	3	LTJG/LT
DISASSOCIATED SEA DUTY TOUR	2	LT
SECOND OPERATIONAL FLYING TOUR	25	LCDR
THIRD OPERATIONAL FLYING TOUR	25	CDR

Figure 3.4 is a superposition of the two-digit coded assignments as specified in Table 3.2 using the tour lengths given in Table 3.3 on the





.....

38

well known framework of the Aviation Officer Professional Development Path as given in Figure 1.1. Figure 3.4 shows when the various types of assignments occur within an aviation career and their tour lengths. This way, Figure 3.4 illustrates that an FRS assignment on the second tour (tour 22), occurs at the grade level of Lieutenant (03), and is 2½ years in length. This compares to the FRS assignment on the fourth tour (tour 24), that is at the grade of Lieutenant Commander (04), and is also 2½ years in length. As stressed in <u>The Unrestricted Line</u> <u>Officer Guidebook</u> [Ref. 1:p. 38], the order of aviation assignments and specific timing is not universally the same for every pilot and NFO but the successful aviator will have completed most of the steps as depicted in Figure 1.1 at the completion of his career.

Morris [Ref. 13:pp. 51-65] showed by a study of 462 careers in the Maritime Patrol Aviation Community that timing and sequence did play a statistically significant part in Aviation Command Selection. A summary is presented in Table 3.4.

## TABLE 3.4

#### AVIATION ASSIGNMENT SEQUENCE

COMMAND SELECTI	EES	NON-SELECTEES	
AFLOAT	53	AFLOAT	53
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	64	FLEET SQUADRON	14
FLEET SQUADRON	15	PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	65
AFLOAT	53	AFLOAT	53
FLEET SQUADRON	14	OTHER	74
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	65	FLEET SQUADRON	15
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	63	OTHER	73
AFLOAT	54	AFLOAT	54
FLEET SQUADRON	15	FLEET SQUADRON	15
FRS	23	AFLOAT	53
FLEET SQUADRON	14	TRAINING COMMAND	34
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	65	FLEET SQUADRON	15

The following is a summary of Morris' [Ref. 13:pp. 43-46] most noteworthy statistical results:

# PILOTS

- 1. Service College <u>significantly</u> enhanced command selection opportunity;
- 2. Postgraduate education may have some positive effect upon selection opportunity;
- 3. FRS tours seem to improve selection opportunity;
- 4. Instructor duty at the Naval Academy, NROTC units may prove beneficial to command selection screening;
- 5. Ship's company sea duty tours may prove detrimental to command selection opportunity;
- 6. Staff shore duty involving warfare specialty may not be particularly enhancing.

# NFOs

- 1. Service College education <u>significantly</u> improves command selection opportunity;
- 2. Postgraduate education does not seem to be considerably important;
- 3. FRS tours are very enhancing;
- 4. Training command tours have <u>considerably positive</u> influence on command selection opportunity;
- 5. Ship's company sea duty tours may have a negative effect upon command screen opportunity.

Although no statistical evidence that the above results are valid outside the time frame of Morris' study of the Maritime Patrol Community is given here, this author's experience with at least three squadron ready room debriefings by senior members of Squadron Command Selection Boards essentially affirms the wider applicability of Morris' results. Thus, timing is known to be of paramount importance to the successful career of an aviator. Detailing assignment officers, as well as, Commanding Officers advise their juniors of these tour effects to help develop viable aviation careers.

# C. IDENTIFICATION OF THE MAJOR AVIATION CAREER POINTS

The <u>Guidebook</u>, in its concluding paragraph discussing the professional development of Aviation Warfare Officers states, "The universal factor influencing a successful career is that of individual performance. Bear in mind that the better your performance as an aviation officer, the greater the number of career options open to you." [Ref. 1:p. 44] Since there are, generally, only two Fleet Squadron tours prior to Aviation Command Screen, the conclusion may be drawn that these are the major aviation career points in which individuals must excel in order to be selected as a Commanding Officer.

In summary, the major aviation career points are listed for the first twenty years of commissioned service as:

- o Fleet Squadron (tour 11). . . Initial operational flying assignment
- o Fleet Squadron (tour 14 or 15). . . Department Head assignment
- Fleet Squadron (tour 16). . . Squadron XO/CO
   Training Command (tour 36). . . Squadron XO/CO

It should be noted that all three major career points occur during a fleet squadron assignment. A Lieutenant in the Aviation Community must complete an initial squadron tour and become qualified as either a Mission Commander, Aircraft Commander, and/or Flight/Division Leader. Specifically, a Mission Commander is either an NFO or pilot who has met the requirements to run an aircraft's tactical mission in a multiposition aircraft, e.g. P3C. An aircraft Commander is a pilot-incommand of a single multi-piloted aircraft, e.g. S3A. A Flight Leader is generally thought of as the senior qualified aviator leading a

multi-aircraft formation. A section is two aircraft; two sections form a division of aircraft, whose commander is the Division Leader.

As a Lieutenant Commander, the next and probably the most important tour to the aviator is the Aviation Department Head assignment. This could be either the second or the third fleet squadron tour depending on subcommunity. The department head tour is the last test prior to the Aviation Command Screening Board which selects Commanders who will become Squadron Commanding Officers. Only the best qualified are selected to lead the aviation squadrons in an approximate thirty month tour. This tour is spent first, as squadron executive officer prior to the command change. The second half of the tour is the all important actual Commanding Officer assignment. 

# D. ACTUAL MOVEMENT PATTERNS

In this section the methodology of O'Conner is adopted to discuss and represent Aviation career patterns for officers through the grade of Commander. Once a Naval aviator reaches the grade of Captain, for all practical purposes, he is lost to aviation due to the shortage of Aviation Captain flying billets. [Ref. 12] Figure 3.5 shows potential career patterns for due course aviation officers who reach aviation command. The most likely tour sequences are listed in Table 3.5.



43

Figure 3.5 Tour Sequence of Successful Aviation Command Selectee

ر و رو و ا

r

.

# TABLE 3.5

# POSSIBLE TOUR SEQUENCE OF SUCCESSFUL AVIATION COMMAND SELECTEE (05)

TOUR NO.								
	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	
ASSIG	۹.							
SEQ.								
A	10	11	22	53	14	65	16	
В	10	11	22	13	34	15	36	
С	10	11	62	53	14	75	16	
D	10	11	32	53	44	15	16	
Е	10	11	42	13	64	15	16	
F	10	11	72	53	14	65	36	
G	10	11	22	53	64	15	16	

Minor differences occur among tour sequences for the various warfare specialties (AQD) discussed in Table 2.1. For example, fighter pilots typically have a much greater opportunity to get a second fleet squadron tour (tour 13) as a Lieutenant, in addition to the third fleet squadron tour, department head (tour 15). This is not normally the case for most other pilot subcommunities. Another difference would be in the Maritime Patrol community where both pilots and NFOs enjoy a greater opportunity of a shorter shore tour immediately prior to (tour 73) and/or immediately after (tour 65), the department head assignment (tour 14). This would occur prior to the XO/CO tour (tour 16). This shorter tour would typically be in a professional development assignment, i.e., a one year service college tour (tour 65). Another distinct possibility is the assignment to a community wing staff (tour 75) in the immediate area "homesteading" after notification of XO/CO selection. Often there may be as long as a year after command selection before a vacancy in the XO billet occurs.

Assignment Sequence A from Table 3.5 is a successful aviation career path during which the officer completes the initial fleet squadron tour (tour 11) and then reports to the Fleet Readiness Squadron (tour 22), from there the officer moves on to an Afloat Ship's Company (tour 53), and then to the Fleet Squadron Aviation Department Head assignment (tour 14). After the Department Head assignment (tour 14) is completed, assignment is made to the Naval War College junior course (tour 65). This course occurs just prior to Aviation Command screening, after which this officer rotates to the Fleet Squadron (tour 16) as the Commanding Officer.

Assignment Sequence B differs from Sequence A at the third tour where the officer is assigned to a second Fleet Squadron (non-Department Head) (tour 13). From there the officer is assigned to the Aviation Training Command as a junior Lieutenant Commander (tour 34). The fifth tour is once again at the Fleet Squadron but as a Department Head (tour 15). Command screening was successful during this career and the XO/CO tour is spent in the Aviation Training Command (tour 36). This type of tour sequence would be desirous from the individual's point of view, but might be career limiting past the XO/CO tour (tour 36) because no broadening or subspecialty development was accomplished, i.e., all tours were in a cockpit.

Assignment Sequence C has the officer going to postgraduate education (tour 62) after the first squadron (tour 11). Immediately after PG school, an afloat ship's company tour (tour 53) usually occurs. Most aviation officers will fight to return to the cockpit after two successive out-of-cockpit tours. The case for this is usually

compelling, hence (tour 14), even though a validated education billet is required. Depending on time prior to Aviation Command screening, a shortened validated education assignment (tour 75) is done. The XO/CO assignment is next in this sequence (tour 16).

Tour Sequence D has the officer rotating from the Fleet Squadron (tour 11) to the Aviation Training Command (tour 32). As with the majority of careers the next assignment after completion of any initial shore duty is to an afloat ship's company (tour 53). The second shore assignment is to a Research and Development squadron, VX-1 (tour 44), which is followed by a Fleet Squadron Department Head billet (tour 15). This Fleet Squadron (tour 15) precedes the XO/CO (tour 16).

Tour Sequence E has the aviation officer rotating ashore from an initial Fleet Squadron (tour 11) to a Research and Development Squadron (tour 42). Both FRS and R & D billets are few in numbers and reserved for the top performers. The next assignment in this sequence is a second Fleet Squadron non-Department Head (tour 13). Postgraduate education at the Lieutenant Commander level is the next assignment (tour 64), followed by both Fleet Squadron Department Head (tour 15) and Fleet Squadron XO/CO tour (tour 16).

During tour Sequence F the aviation officer leaves the Fleet Squadron (tour 11) to go to an overseas Staff billet (tour 72). The next assignment is the Afloat Ship's Company (tour 53) and completing two successive out-of-cockpit assignments, the Fleet Squadron Department Head (tour 14) follows. After this early department head assignment is over, a professional broadening tour at the Naval War College is

completed (tour 65) just prior to the XO/CO assignment (tour 36) in the Aviation Training Command.

Tour Sequence G is the same as Sequence A until the fourth tour when Postgraduate education (tour 64) occurs instead of an early Fleet Squadron Department Head (tour 14). The Fleet Squadron assignment (tour 15), however, follows PG school prior to the XO/CO (tour 16).

Figure 3.6 depicts career pathways of officers who retire as Commanders and are not Aviation Command Selectees. Refer to Table 3.6 to further explain Figure 3.6.

#### TABLE 3.6

## POSSIBLE TOUR SEQUENCE OF AVIATOR (05) NON-COMMAND SELECTEE; RETIRES AS 05

			TOU	R NO.			
	0	1	2	3	4	5	6
ASSIGN.							
H	10	11	62	53	14	65	76
J	10	11	22	13	34	75	56
К	10	11	32	53	74	15	36
L	10	11	42	73	54	15	76
M	10	11	72	53	34	15	66

Tour Sequence H is the same as Sequence C, discussed previously, until the fifth tour when assignment is made to the Naval War College (tour 65). In this sequence the officer is selected to the grade of Commander but fails to select as a potential aviation Commanding Officer and is assigned a shore staff billet (tour 76).

Tour Sequence J is the same as Sequence B until the fifth assignment which is a shore staff billet (tour 75). As this officer selects for the grade of Commander only, an afloat tour is next (tour 56).



Tour Sequence K is similar to Sequence D through the third tour. After the afloat assignment (tour 53), a shore staff billet is the next billet (tour 74). This is followed by the Fleet Squadron Department Head assignment (tour 15). As this Commander fails to select for XO/CO, the detailer sends this officer to the Aviation Training Command (tour 36) for staff duty at one of the wings.

During Tour Sequence L, the aviation officer rotates from an R & D Squadron (tour 42), where he earned a subspecialty coding in Weapons Systems Acquisition Management (WSAM), to a WSAM billet at the Systems' Command Headquarters in Washington, D.C. (tour 73). After two successive shore tours, the next assignment in the sequence is to an afloat unit (tour 54). The Fleet Squadron Department Head (tour 15) follows the ship's company assignment. As this Commander failed to Command select, assignment again is made in his subspecialty area (tour 76).

Tour Sequence M is the same as Sequence F until the fourth tour with assignment to the Aviation Training Command (tour 34). Sea duty is next in sequence with the return to a Fleet Squadron for Department Head duties (tour 15). A few of these non-XO/CO aviation officers are selected for postgraduate education at the Commander level (tour 66).

Figure 3.7 depicts career paths of non-due course Lieutenant Commanders, passed over for Commander who retire from the Service at that point. Refer to Table 3.7 to follow the career pathway flow shown in Figure 3.7.



7

Retiree

×.

# TABLE 3.7

### POSSIBLE TOUR SEQUENCE OF AVIATOR (04) NON-DUE COURSE; RETIRES AS 04

		TOUR NO.						
	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	
ASSIGN. SEO.	•							
N	10	11	72	53	14	35	76	
P	10	11	62	53	74	15	76	
Q	10	11	42	53	34	15	76	
R	10	11	32	53	64	75	76	
S	10	11	22	53	14	35	76	

Assignment Sequence N is the same as Sequence F until this officer fails to select for Commander. At that point, his orders are to the Aviation Training Command Staff (tour 35) followed by a tour at a Naval Air Station (tour 76).

Assignment Sequence P follows that of Sequence C until after the afloat ship's company billet (tour 53). The next assignment is to a validated PG school billet for the required payback within two assignments (tour 74). This officer failed to select during his fifth tour in the Fleet Squadron (tour 15). The next assignment in this sequence, prior to retirement, is to a shore staff (tour 76).

Assignment Sequence Q career path has the officer going from an R & D Squadron (tour 42) to an Afloat Unit (tour 53). From there, the officer's career takes him to the Training Command (tour 34), and then to the Fleet Squadron (tour 15). As this officer fails to select for Commander, he elects to retire after 20 years. His last assignment is Washington, D.C. (tour 76).

Assignment Sequence R follows the same route as Sequence D up through the third tour. The fourth tour is a postgraduate education assignment (tour 64) followed by an immediate validated PG billet ashore (tour 75). As this officer fails to select for Commander, he rotates to another shore assignment (tour 76) until retirement at the twenty year point.

Assignment Sequence S follows the exact sequence found in A through tour four. For his fifth tour, the officer is ordered to the Aviation Training Command (tour 35) where failure to select for Commander is reason for a follow on assignment, again ashore at a naval air station (tour 76). Retirement is at the twenty year point in this career path.

Figure 3.8 depicts career paths of non-due course Lieutenants passed over for Lieutenant Commander who separate from the Service at that time. Refer to Table 3.8 to follow the flow pattern.

#### TABLE 3.8

#### POSSIBLE TOUR SEQUENCE OF LIEUTENANT AVIATOR (03) NON-DUE COURSE, SEPARATES FROM SERVICE

	TOUR NO.							TOUR NO.			
	0	1	2	3	4	5	6				
ASSIGN. SEQ.											
Т	10	11	32	53	84						
U	10	11	72	33	84						

Assignment Sequence T follows the same career path that Sequence D did through the third assignment (tour 53). However, at this point this officer's performance has left something to be desired and therefore, he fails to select for Lieutenant Commander. It is at this point that the career is terminated by separation (tour 84).

<del>,</del> • 



j,

then returning to the Training Command (tour 33). Because performance has been less than successful, this career is finished when the officer is passed over for Lieutenant Commander and separates (tour 84) from the Navy.

In assignment Sequence U the career path after the Fleet Squadron

(tour 11) has the officer assigned to a naval air station (tour 72) and

# IV. PCS COSTS

# A. NAVY WIDE PCS COSTS

The Problem Statement in Chapter I, Section C, discussed the efficiency of officer career paths with respect to PCS moves. For the fiscal years 1984 and 1985, Congress has failed to grant the entire amount of funds requested by the Navy for planned movement of its personnel. This shortfall has caused the Navy's manpower planners to think of new ways of reducing PCS amounts. Funding reductions, however, do not always bring about more efficient ways of doing business. Often, these cuts are imposed across the board on every line item, e.g., a one percent reduction in "Training PCS" expenses may be ordered across the board. This one percent reduction may allow the Navy to remain within a specified ceiling in the PCS budget but might prove to be very inefficient because of its effect on individual service members' careers. Reduction of "Training PCS" would, of course, bring down total expenditures, but it would also reduce the effectiveness of new trainees in the unit where they are reporting. A prospective Aviation Department Head enroute to become a Squadron Maintenance Officer would be much more effective in the billet at the start if he had attended the eight week course the Navy has developed in this area. Many squadron maintenance officers do not get the opportunity of this training and must learn the job by doing it. Cost effectiveness, in this example does not necessarily lead to increased effectiveness in job performance.

The total FY84 PCS Travel account authorized by Congress for the entire Navy was \$ 566,646,000.00 [Ref. 17:p. 170]. Appendix A shows the

breakdown for the Navy of the six different types of PCS moves for fiscal years 1980 through 1984. The move types, defined in Table 1.1, are accession, separation, operational, training, unit, and rotational moves. Appendix A lists the numbers of moves by category as well as, the total funds spent in each category. To the right of each category amount is in parentheses the percentage of the total for the fiscal year that applies for that category. For example, in fiscal year 1980, 43,200 operational moves were made by Navy personnel which represented fourteen percent of the total number of moves made that year in the entire Navy. Similarly, \$ 76,300,000.00 was spent on Navy operational moves in fiscal year 1980 which represented twenty percent of all PCS costs for that year. [Ref. 18:pp. 40-45]. The second and third pages of Appendix A present the data found on the initial page of this appendix in graphic format.

Appendix B is a listing of PCS entitlements that an individual in the Services may claim when moving from one tour of duty to the next [Ref. 4]. Appendix C breaks down the major entitlements further into percentages of the total Navy budget [Ref. 18:p. 49].

#### B. PCS POLICY INFLUENCES NUMBER OF MOVES

As the Department of Defense PCS Study [Ref. 19:p. 4] points out, total DOD accession and separation moves are <u>not</u> influenced by tour length and assignment policies, but rather by the rate of population turnover. Policy and tour length changes do influence the number of rotational and operational moves, however. Three factors tend to drive the numbers of these types of moves:

1. The number of tours with fixed assignment length.

2. Length of fixed tours and maximum length of variable tours.

3. Staffing policies.

Fixed tour lengths drive the numbers of operational and rotational moves for the reason that individuals <u>must</u> move after a specified period of time. The <u>length</u> of fixed tours and the <u>maximum</u> length of variable tours influence the rate at which personnel are "turned over" in their units. Staffing policies, such as permissible tour sequences, homesteading strategies, and voluntary extensions can also influence the number of operational and rotational moves. [Ref. 19:p. 4]

The number of PCS moves is sometimes compared to total Naval end strength, creating the impression that more than half of the total Naval population moves every year. For example, when the approximate 323,200 moves for the entire Navyin FY84, shown in Appendix A, are compared to the FY84 approximate end strength of 564,800 [Ref. 17:p. 155] it would appear that 57 percent of the population was required to move that year. However, this does not consider the extent to which both strength level and number of moves are affected by accessions and separations. A more accurate picture is gained by comparing the number of moves during a year, exclusive of accession and separation moves, to the number of people on board for that year. Using this approach, only 22 percent of the Navy population moved in FY84. Figure 4.1 is a graph using this approach of excluding accessions and separations to show the percentage of people moving within each of the Armed Services over the fiscal years 1980-84 [Ref. 18:p. 15].

At this point it is necessary to introduce the term, "manageable" PCS. Manageable PCS is defined here as operational, rotational, and



||**||---|**| |----| -

Figure 4.1 Percentage of People Moving for Each Service (Excluding Accessions and Separations)

training PCS moves because assignment policies have a direct effect on both the total dollars expended, and total number de moves in each of these three categories. The detailing officers manage these three categories, which made up only thirty-five percent of the total number of moves, but sixty-four percent of the costs in fiscal year 1984 as shown in Appendix A.

# C. AVIATION COMMUNITY PCS

Dollar costs the past five fiscal years have been obtained from NMPC-46 for aviation officer PCS movements through the grade of Commander. Table 4.1 shows the breakdown of these costs for the three manageable types of PCS moves in the Aviation Community. All three categories have increased significantly in fiscal year 1984 over previous years shown. For example, the FY84 Aviation Operational PCS amount spent represents a twenty-four percent increase over the amount in this category in FY83. Aviation Rotational PCS dollars spent in FY84 are up thirty-five percent and Aviation Training dollars expended have increased by twenty-eight percent in one year.

#### TABLE 4.1

#### COST OF AVIATION PCS THRU THE GRADE 05 (\$000)

TYPE	FY80	<u>FY81</u>	FY82	<u>FY83</u>	<u>FY84</u>
OPERATIONAL	5160	8321	7800	6452	8039
ROTATIONAL	8476	11595	10678	8343	11283
TRAINING	3878	5180	5377	5478	6992
TOTALS	\$17514	\$25096	\$23855	\$20273	\$26314

Comparing the Navy-wide PCS cost, \$ 566,646,000.00 to the Navy Aviation Officer dollar amounts supplied in Table 4.1 for FY84, it is seen that the operational, rotational, and training PCS cost of \$ 26,314,000.00 in the Aviation Community is only 4.6 percent of the total Navy PCS budget for that year. This 4.6 percent of the total Navy PCS budget represents the amount that could be influenced by changes in length of Aviation Officer assignment tours.

PCS movement trends in the Aviation Officer Community can be seen from the fiscal year data presented in Tables 4.2 and 4.3. The figures in these tables are divided into Operational Moves (OP), Rotational Moves (ROT), and Training Moves (TRA), and show both cost moves and <u>no-</u> cost moves. A no-cost move is defined as a move to a subsequent tour in the same geographic area with little or no cost to to the Navy. No-cost moves are not included in the number of PCS moves reported to Congress. Therefore, the degree of Aviation Officer turbulence is understated. This turbulence will be discussed in Section D of this chapter. Table 4.4 is a summation of Table 4.2 and 4.3. These data were supplied by NMPC-46.

#### TABLE 4.2

### NUMBER OF AVIATION COST MOVES THRU GRADE 05

TYPE	<u>FY80</u>	<u>FY81</u>	<u>FY82</u>	FY83	<u>FY84</u>
OPERATIONAL	1652	2136	1959	1606	1901
ROTATIONAL	903	1100	1027	938	1312
TRAINING	1353	1513	1654	1504	1919
SUBTOTAL	3908	4749	4640	4048	5132

# TABLE 4.3

# NUMBER OF AVIATION NO-COST MOVES THRU GRADE 05

TYPE	<u>FY80</u>	<u>FY81</u>	FY82	<u>F¥83</u>	<u>FY84</u>
OPERATIONAL	917	824	947	699	666
ROTATIONAL	4	2	4	3	9
TRAINING	132	135	143	265	566
SUBTOTAL	1053	961	1094	967	1241

e'11

# TABLE 4.4

TOTAL	NUMBER O	AVIATION COST	& <u>NO-COST</u> MOV	ES THRU GRADE 05	
TYPE	FY80	<u>FY81</u>	<u>FY82</u>	<u>FY83</u>	<u>FY84</u>
OPERATIONAL	2569	2960	2906	2305	2567
ROTATIONAL	907	1102	1031	941	1321
TRAINING	1485	1648	1797	1769	2485
TOTAL	4961	5710	5734	5015	6373

Section B of this chapter pointed out that only twenty-two percent of the entire Navy population moved in fiscal year 1984 (excluding accessions and separations). From Table 4.4, the total number of aviation officer cost and no-cost transfers in fiscal year 1984 was 6373, representing forty-four percent of the Aviation Community end strength of 14447 officers (see Table 2.3). The rate of forty-four percent of aviation PCS movement in 1984 is double the rate of twentytwo percent found in Section B for the entire Navy that same year. This forty-four percent of Aviation PCS moves in 1984 also represents a significant increase in aviation movement over the FY83 rate of thirtyfive percent. The suspected reason for this increase is that aviation officer tour lengths have considerably shortened over the past two years. Therefore, the next section will discuss recent trends in aviation tour lengths.

D. TOUR LENGTHS AND PCS TURBULENCE

In response to a <u>Newsweek Magazine</u> questionnaire for a Summer 1985 article on officer careers, OP-01G reviewed the assignment lengths of all Naval Officers and measured the difference between assignment reporting dates and projected rotation dates. The average frequency of transfers for officers from command to command by grade is shown in Table 4.5 for all mid-grade officers in the Navy.

#### TABLE 4.5

#### NAVY OFFICER FREQUENCY OF TRANSFER

GRADE	FREQUENCY OF TRANSF	E
	IN MONTHS	
LT	28.3	
LCDR	30.1	
CDR	31.3	

OP-130 personnel have developed a Time-on-Station measurement capability for the Aviation Community in response to the research question, "How long are Aviation Community tours by officer grade and fiscal year?" The data base included all aviation officers conducting a permanent Change-of-Station move during the three fiscal years studied. This Time-on-Station statistic measured the actual tour length averages of the five aviation subcommunities discussed in Chapter II, Section A. As this Time-on-Station average decreases, an increase in officer turbulence occurrs. Turbulence is the unwanted side effect of personnel movement between assignments, and is caused by the newly reporting officer being less efficient than the outgoing officer.

The tour length averages for all Naval officers in Table 4.5 are considerably longer in comparison to those found in Table 4.6 for the Aviation Officer Community. Column <u>Delta 1</u>, in Table 4.6, is the net change in average aviation tour length from fiscal year 1983 to 1984. Column <u>Delta 2</u>, in Table 4.6, is the net change in the average aviation tour length from FY82 to FY84. In the fifteen different categories by officer grade and subcommunities listed in Table 4.6, twelve tour averages decreased from FY83 to FY84, only two tour averages increased in length, and one remained the same. Column <u>Delta 2</u>, shows that the tour lengths decrerased from FY82 to FY84 in eleven cases, two tour averages remained the same, and only one tour average increased.

e in

This increased aviation officer PCS movement is in direct conflict with the mood of Congress. The reduction of all Federal Government expenditures will be required if the country's budget deficits are to be reduced.

	AVIATION SUBC	OMMUNITY '	tour lengt	H AVERAGE (MOS)							
				*	**						
GRADE	<u>FY82</u>	<u>FY83</u>	<u>FY84</u>	DELTA 1	DELTA 2						
JET PILOT											
LT	30	27	26	-1	-4						
LCDR	27	28	26	- 2	-1						
CDR	26	24	25	+1	-1						
JET NFO											
LT	35	33 -	29	-4	-6						
LCDR	29	27	25	-2	-4						
CDR	27	27	26	-1	-1						
PROP PILOT											
LT	30	30	30	0	0						
LCDR	29	27	26	-1	- 3						
CDR	25	27	25	-2	0						
PROP NFO											
LT	33	32	<u> </u>	-1	- 2						
LCDR	29	28	25	-3	-4						
CDR	27	25	28	+3	+1						
HELO PILOT											
LT	26	27	26	-1	0						
LCDR	29	28	24	-4	- 5						
CDR	27	25	24	-1	-3						

# TABLE 4.6

\* DELTA 1 = Net change in average aviation tour length from FY83 to FY84
\*\* DELTA 2 = Net change in average aviation tour length from FY82 to FY84

## V. AVIATION OFFICER REQUIREMENTS SIMULATION MODEL

Various ideas from the Aviation Officer Requirements Model [Ref. 12] have been discussed throughout this thesis. The Model was developed to test the implications of various policy alternatives in determining total Aviation Officer Requirements. After obtaining the Navy owned software and minimal hands on training in this Model's operation, using a Wang VS-100 minicomputer at the Pacific Training Command headquarters in San Diego for thirty computer hours, fifty-four computer simulations were obtained. As pointed out in Chapter IV, aviation officer movement between assignments has increased, causing the average length of aviation tours to become shorter. The above model was utilized to determine if it could predict optimal Fleet Squadron tour lengths for tours 13, 14, and 15 (defined in Section A of Chapter III), and still meet all the aviation officer requirements by varying pilot and NFO retention rates. Results are summarized in Table 5.1. An example of model output is provided in Appendix D. It is beyond the scope of this thesis to attempt to describe the Aviation Officer Requirements Model or operator input data. Both are adequately explained, however in references 12 and 14.

#### A. SIMULATION MODEL RESULTS

In order to obtain the results displayed in Table 5.1, the Pilot and NFO retention rates were varied against the length of the Fleet Squadron Tours (tours 13, 14, and 15). Several Aviation Officer Requirements Model "Multiple Aviation Community" computer simulation runs, much like

the example found in Appendix D, were conducted changing the lengths of tours 13, 14, and 15 from twenty-four months to twenty-seven, thirty, thirty-three, and thirty-six months.

The number of PCS moves obtained on the last two pages of Appendix D titled, "Multiple Run Summary, Naval Aviators" and "Naval Flight Officers", is given in row F of Table 5.1 under the column labeled "30 month". In this case, the Model has determined that with a thirty month Fleet Squadron Tour length (for tours 13, 14, and 15) with Pilot retention at sixty percent and NFO retention at seventy-four percent, 10,674 pilots and 5083 NFOs will be required. The total number of PCS moves, for both pilots and NFOs, was determined to be 6716. It should be pointed out here that this Model was developed to determine the numbers of aviation officers required to meet the Navy's needs. The numbers of PCS moves that the Requirement's Model determined was not an original goal and, therefore, it is somewhat cumbersome to use this model to figure out the number of PCS moves.

# B. RETENTION RATES VERUS FLEET SQUADRON TOUR LENGTHS

As expected when the Fleet tour length remains constant, say at twenty-four months, and retention for Pilots or NFOs is increased, the number of PCS moves decreases. However, moving across the rows, i.e., changing the tour lengths and keeping the same retention rates, the results are initially surprising. It was originally expected that as tour lengths increased, the number of PCS moves would decrease. This is indeed true when retention figures are low (Pilot 30%/NFO 60% and Pilot 40%/NFO 60%). However, at a pilot retention rate of 45 percent and NFO

# TABLE 5.1

# AVIATION OFFICER REQUIREMENTS/NUMBER OF PCS MOVES PREDICTED AS FLEET SQUADRON TOURS 13, 14, 15 LENGTH IS CHANGED (13 CARRIER AVIATION WINGS)

ROW	GROUP RET	ENTION	24 MONTH	27 MONTH	30 MONTH	33 MONTH	36 MONTH
	PILOT	30%	16114	15695	13490	12476	11706
	NFO	50%	<u>4581</u>	4476	4642	4832	4836
	TOTAL REQ	N/A	20695	20171	18132	17308	16542
A	PCS MOVES	N/A	10139	9841	8653	8161	7659
	PILOT	40%	16498	13362	11885	10995	11040
	NFO	60%	<u>4581</u>	<u>4476</u>	4642	4832	<u>4836</u>
	TOTAL REQ	N/A	21079	17838	16527	15827	15876
В	PCS MOVES	N/A	10003	8278	7490	7102	7078
	PILOT	45%	13654	12822	10954	10867	10995
	NFO	65%	4521	4590	4709	5003	5175
	TOTAL REQ	N/A	18175	17412	15663	15870	16170
С	PCS MOVES	N/A	8338	7880	6919	6999	7136
	FILOT	50%	13327	11828	10814	10746	10846
	NFO	70%	4628	<u>4733</u> ·	4983	<u>5176</u>	<u>5278</u>
	TOTAL REQ	N/A	17955	16561	15797	15922	16124
D	PCS MOVES	N/A	8100	7293	6897	6932	6999
	PILOT	5 5%	12732	11819	10750	10809	10915
	NFO	727.	4634	<u>4811</u>	<u>5045</u>	<u>5221</u>	<u>5321</u>
	TOTAL REQ	N/A	17366	16630	15795	16030	16236
E	PCS MOVES	N/A	7667	7244	6802	6904	6981
	PILOT	60%	12198	10973	10674	10930	10931
	NFO	747	<u>4674</u>	<u>4905</u>	5083	<u>5254</u>	<u>5298</u>
	TOTAL REQ	N/A	16872	15878	15757	16184	16229
F	PCS MOVES	N/A	7342	6786	6716	6914	6916

-----\_\_\_\_ ÷. 

2

. .

67

•

· . •

retention rate of sixty-five percent, as seen in the row labeled C in Table 5.1, the number of PCS moves first decreases, then increases with increasing tour length. This type of behavior is repeated at retention rates of Pilot 50%/NFO 70%, shown in row D of Table 5.1; Pilot 55%/NFO 72%, in row E; and finally Pilot 60%/NFO 74%, in row F.

These results can be explained as follows. The model will always meet all aviation requirements in the order of the numbering system developed in Figure 3.1 for assignment types. Requirements are first met in the Fleet Squadrons (assignment type number one), followed by meeting all requirements in the Fleet Readiness Squadrons (assignment type number two). This same process is continued in meeting the remaining aviation officer requirements in numerical order of assignment type. Given a surplus of aviation officers in a particular grade, the model increases upward detailing up to the default value set at twenty percent of the total number of officers in the specific grade available for assignment for these computer simulations. For example, if a shortage of Lieutenant Commanders exists in an Aviation Subcommunity, Lieutenants would be detailed into Lieutenant Commander billets up to the default value. The default values can be changed by operator input. The model also ensures that at least three Lieutenant Commanders are available to each aviation squadron to fill three of the four Aviation Squadron Department Head billets. The fourth Department Head billet is thus available for upward detailing. As retention rates are increased, all aviation officer requirements are met and more aviation officers are available for what the model calls "out of aviation flow" which would tend to increase the total number of PCS moves. When retention rates

are low, as in rows A and B of Table 5.1, the advantages of increasing tour lengths are apparent in the reulting lower number of PCS moves. However, at higher retention rates as in rows C, D, 2, and F, the benefits of increasing tour lengths wear out. After a point, all aviation requirements are met and the surplus of aviators is used to fill 1000/1050 billet requirements called "out of aviation movement" by the model, which again increases the number of PCS moves. This "out of aviation movement" is to billets designated 1000 (meaning billets to be filled by any Unrestricted Line Officer) and 1050 (meaning billets to be filled by any Warfare Specialty Officer). The model will also look for requirements that meet the best fit, meaning a PCS move will be generated up to three months early, and also three months late, and not necessarily at the specified tour length. This could increase or decrease total PCS move numbers presented in Table 5.1.

#### C. MODEL APPLICATION

Table 5.2 shows both Pilot and NFO retention rate data obtained from the officer bimonthly newsletter, <u>Perspective</u>, July/August, 1984 for the past five fiscal years. The fiscal year 1979 retention rates of thirtyone percent for pilots and sixty percent for NFOs, compare closely to the retention rates in row A, of Table 5.1. Here, the optimal tour length for tours 13, 14, and 15 resulting in minimal number of PCS moves was found to be thirty-six months. In FY81, Pilot retention rate was forty-two percent and NFO retention was sixty-five percent. This best compares with retention rates in row C, of Table 5.1 where the optimal tour length (giving the smallest number of
PCS moves) was determined to be thirty months. In FY82, the retention rates were forty-nine and seventy-three percent for pilots and NFOs, respectively, comparing closely with the retention rates in row D in Table 5.1, indicating a thirty month optimal tour length for tours 13, 14, and 15. The FY83 retention rate was fifty-eight percent for pilots and seventy-four percent for NFOs, comparing closely with the simulation data presented, in row F, in Table 5.1. Here a thirty month optimal tour length was determined as giving the least number of PCS moves.

### TABLE 5.2

### AVIATION OFFICER RETENTION RATES IN PERCENTAGE AND OPTIMAL TOUR LENGTHS

	<u>FY79</u>	FY80	<u>FY81</u>	FY82	<u>FY83</u>	<u>FY84</u> (Proj)
PILOT	31	30	42	49	58	60
NFO	60	71	65	73	74	80
OPTIMAL TO LENGTHS IN MONTHS	UR 36		30	30	30	30

When this modeling result is compared to the actual Aviation tour length data of Table 4.6, it appears that the Navy may not be optimizing tour lengths in the Aviation Officer Community in order to achieve lower PCS costs.

### VI. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REDUCED PCS MOVEMENT

### A. INITIAL FLEET SQUADRON TOUR AND AVIATION MINIMUM SERVICE REQUIREMENT

As discussed in Chapter I, Section A, the typical aviation officer completes initial flight training in one and one-half years, and at that point incurs an obligated service time of five years. Training continues at a Fleet Readiness Squadron for an additional six months, during which time, the obligated service requirement for the aviator has been reduced, to a total of 4½ years remaining. Prior to 1979, obligated service was shorter and coincided fairly closely with the end of the thirty-six month First Fleet Squadron assignment (tour 11). When the Navy increased the obligated service requirement to five years, the Fleet Squadron assignment remained the same in length and aviators now complete this tour with eighteen months remaining in their service obligation. Therefore, the Navy now reassigns all the Lieutenant aviators completing tour 11, to a shore tour. As shown in Figure 2.1, the aviator officer retention rate is measured two years after the Minimum Service Requirement (MSR) time, i.e., at the 61/2 years of commissioned service point.

Figure 2.1 illustrated an example of fifty percent retention with an original cohort of 1000. At the MSR point, 930 aviators are in the service, whereas, at the MSR + 2 point in time, where retention is measured, only 480 aviators remain. Figure 6.1 is carried over from Figure 2.1 with the same numeric assumptions, but Figure 6.1 is illustrated slightly differently, however. The Flight Training tour (tour 10) is shown in this example and begins on the horizontal axis at



Figure 6.1 Early Tour Sequence (Current and Proposed) With Aviation Minimum Service Requirement

minus 1.5 years of aviation service. Aviation service and Minimum Obligated Service begin at the zero year point, when flight training is completed. In this example, 450 aviators (forty-five percent of the original cohort of 1000) leave the service between the eighteen months after completion of tour 11 and at or prior to the completion of the first shore assignment, as illustrated by the <u>current</u> tour sequence shown in Figure 6.1. If the aviation officer elects to leave at the MSR point the shore command will need a replacement approximately one year to eighteen months prior to what was originally expected. Often these shore assignments are gapped until a replacement can be found, but even if not, replacing officers every eighteen months in what are designed to be thirty to thirty-six month tours, is unacceptably expensive and destabilizing.

### B. EFFECT OF INCREASING LENGTH OF INITIAL FLEET SQUADRON TOUR

By increasing the Fleet Squadron Tour (tour 11) by 18 months, the end of that tour would coincide with the Minimum Service Requirement. This would save the cost of moving those 450 aviators who opted to leave the service at their MSR. Those aviators who would rotate ashore at the MSR point would be mostly officers desiring to remain in the Navy for a career. This tour sequence is illustrated in the <u>proposed</u> tour sequence at the bottom of Figure 6.1. This decrease in turbulence in personnel movement in the first shore tour would create favorable command stability. Opposition to increasing this initial Fleet Squadron sea duty (tour 11) is anticipated to be strong. The question must be asked why people volunteer to make aviation a career. The answer is,

aviators want to fly! After completing tour 11 and rotating ashore, the majority of the shore flying billets are found at the FRS and Aviation Training Command. However, approximately one third of the aviators rotated ashore are to non-flying assignments. After reevaluation of the shore establishment Lieutenant non-flying billets (designated 13XX), it is possible that many of them could be redesignated to become 1000 or 1050 billets. This would be necessary because, as the time at the Fleet Squadron (tour 11) is lengthened, fewer aviators would be made available each period to fill shore assignments.

As an example, there are requirements for nearly 1500 aviators, Lieutenants and below, in the Fleet Squadrons of the Maritime Patrol Community. A three year long initial Fleet Squadron assignment (tour 11), means that in order to keep 1500 Lieutenant aviators in the squadrons every year, 500 newly reporting LTJGs from the FRS are needed every year as that many are rotated each year to ashore billets at the end of their three year assignments. With the proposed four and one half year Fleet Squadron (tour 11) both input and output are reduced to 333 aviators per year. This is a difference of 167 fewer aviators per year that the Training Command would not have to train. It would also mean a savings of 167 PCS moves per year, assuming 50% retention. This is true once steady state is reached after a transistion period of making the change.

Of course, the negative side of this proposal is that there are 167 fewer aviators per year available for assignment to shore billets at the end of the first Fleet tour. This problem can be partially solved by increasing the length of the first shore tour as well. This could be

justified by the argument that if the first sea tour is lengthened, compensation for it can be given by increasing the initial shore assignment during the second tour.

### C. ACTUAL AT SEA TIME IN LENGTHENED INITIAL TOUR

In a four and one half year sea tour, it would be of benefit to know how much actual at sea time the aviator would end up spending. Tables 6.1 and 6.2 illustrate this for two cases. If an aviator arrives at his initial fleet squadron and immediately deploys on a nine month cruise, after returning home for six months, he repeats the cycle over again until the tour is complete. Four nine month cruises and a total of thirty-six months at sea will be accumulated during this tour as shown in Table 6.1. Now suppose the aviator arrived while the squadron was just returning from a deployment, stayed ashore for six months, and then deployed for the nine month cruise, repeating the cycle until the tour is complete. Under this cycle, a 4½ year initial sea tour would have this aviator making three nine month deployments with a three month gap at the end, as shown in Table 6.2.

### TABLE 6.1

### AT SEA TIME FOR THE PROPOSED 4½ YEAR FLEET SQUADRON TOUR (DEPLOY IMMEDIATELY)

CRUISE	9	6	9	6	9	6	9
SCHEDULE	OUT	IN	OUT	IN	OUT	IN	OUT
CUMULATIVE Months In Assignment	9	15	24	30	39	45	54

### TABLE 6.2

### AT SEA TIME FOR THE PROPOSED 4½ YEAR FLEET SQUADRON TOUR (DEPLOY AFTER SIX MONTHS)

CRUISE	6	9	6	9	6	9	6	3
SCHEDULE	IN	OUT	IN	OUT	IN	OUT	IN	OUT
CUMULATIVE MONTHS IN ASSIGNMENT	6	15	21	30	36	45	51	54

### D. FIVE TOUR SEQUENCE TO AVIATION COMMAND

As an overall goal, a reduction of one PCS move per twenty year aviation officer career is proposed. The largest dollar savings would occur if this suggested one PCS move was eliminated in the first nine or ten years of aviation service when greater overall numbers of officers are on active duty as illustrated in Figure 6.1. Instead of six assignment tours through the Aviation Command point, five is the number recommended. The individual's aviation career would not suffer as this recommendation is proposed as an across the board change for every aviator. Examples of aviation career paths for this new proposal are shown in Figure 6.2 using the method developed in Chapter III. The tour sequences are listed in Table 6.3. The numbers in parentheses after tour assignment number represent the tour length in years.

۲ 3 3 3 3 3 3 6 Figure 6.2 Tour Sequence of Five Tour Aviation **( (1**) **1 (1)** ٩ **(1**) (Ħ) 6 3 • 3  $(\mathbf{\hat{E}})$ 3  $\overline{\mathbb{S}}$ 67 3 3 8 3  $\overline{\mathbb{G}}$ S (1)3 6 3 3 3 6 6 3 E ٩ 0 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT RESEARCH & Development 8 SEPARATION FLEET READINESS SQUADRON TRAINING COMMAND FLEET SQUADRON TOUR NO. AFLOAT OTHER n ø ~ 1 ~ -4

Command Selectee

r

### TABLE 6.3

### POSSIBLE FIVE TOUR SEQUENCES OF AVIATION COMMAND SELECTEES

						TOUR	NO	•				
	0	(YRS)	1	(YRS)	2	(YRS)	3	(YRS)	4	(YRS)	5	(YRS)
ASSIG	Ν.											
SEQ.												
V	10	(15)	11	(4½)	22	(4)	63	(1)	14	(3)	15	(3)
W	10	(15)	11	(4노)	32	(3)	23	(3)	14	(3)	15	(3)
Х	10	(15)	11	(4½)	42	(4)	53	(2)	14	(3)	15	(3)
Y	10	(15)	11	(45)	62	(2)	73	(3)	14	(3)	15	(3)
Z	10	(15)	11	(4支)	72	(4)	13	(3)	34	(3)	35	(3)

Assignment Sequence V in Table 6.3 represents a successful aviation career path during which the officer completes the lengthened initial four and one half year Fleet Squadron tour (tour 11) and then reports to the lengthened four year Fleet Readiness Squadron (tour 22). From there, the officer moves on to a one year Professional Development tour at the Naval War College (tour 63), followed by a three year Fleet Squadron Department Head assignment (tour 14). This officer is successful in his selection for squadron command and reports for an XO/CO tour (tour 15).

In assignment sequence W, after the lengthened Fleet Squadron (tour 11), the officer reports for duty at the Training Command (tour 32) for a three year assignment. This tour is immediately followed by a second shore tour in succession to a three year Fleet Readiness Squadron assignment (tour 23). The Fleet Squadron Department Head (tour 14) is followed by squadron command in the Fleet Squadron (tour 15).

Assignment sequence X has the officer spending a longer shore flying assignment at a Research and Development Squadron (tour 42) followed by

a short Afloat (tour 53). The Fleet Squadron Department Head (tour 14) and XO/CO (tour 15) assignments follow in order.

\* •

In assignment sequence Y, after the Fleet Squadron (tour 11), the officer is assigned to Postgraduate School for two years in a Professional Development tour (tour 62). This is immediately followed by a required education payback assignment (tour 73). The sequence is the same as sequence V for the remaining two assignments.

Assignment sequence Z has the officer spending a longer shore assignment in a Staff billet (tour 72) after completing the initial Fleet Squadron (tour 11). The next assignment is to a Fleet Squadron for an early Department Head tour (tour 13) and then rotating ashore to a Training Command billet (tour 34). This sequence has the officer being selected as XO/CO of a Training Command Squadron (tour 35).

The assignment sequences presented in this section meet the reduced PCS movement goal proposed here.

### VII. CONCLUSION

The introduction in Chapter I pointed out the conflict that occurs in the Navy when pressure from Congress to reduce personnel movement and PCS costs is in apparent conflict with the aviation officer's need to gain necessary professional growth to succeed by executing a sequence of various assignments. Chapter IV pointed out the increase in aviation PCS movement patterns over fiscal year 1980 through fiscal year 1984 and its unwanted side effect of increased turbulence in the Aviation Officer Community. Chapter V, through the use of the model "Aviation Officer Requirements," suggested that increased tour lengths over what are presently occurring, would possibly provide a more optimal return on the investment of PCS dollars expended per aviation tour. Chapter VI recommended lengthening the first Fleet Squadron tour (tour 11) to coincide with the aviation Minimum Service Requirement in order to reduce unnecessary movement of large numbers of aviation officers who elect to leave the service at the MSR. This proposed increase in the length of the Fleet Squadron tour is to be made more palatable to the Naval aviator by increasing the subsequent shore tour length as well. Suggested complete tour sequences for the reduced movement of aviation officers was presented. The overall benefit to the Navy, if the recommendations in Chapter VI were adopted could mean:

- 1. Increased individual officer efficiency;
- 2. Improvements in overall unit and air squadron readiness due to less personnel turnover;
- 3. Reduction in overall aviation officer training requirements;
- 4. Savings in costs associated with fewer officer rotations.

As postulated in Chapter I, the armed service seen by Congress as the most efficient in the management of personnel movements and effective in reducing costs, will benefit the most in the procurement of much needed additional hardware in the upcoming tighter budget years.

### APPENDIX A

### TRENDS IN PCS MOVES AND COSTS BY MOVE CATEGORY FOR THE ENTIRE U.S. NAVY FOR FYs 1980 TO 1984

### NUMBER OF MOVES IN THOUDANDS

TYPE	<u>FY80 (7.)</u>	FY81 (%)	<u>FY82</u> (7.)	FY83 (%)	<u>FY84</u> (7.)
ACCESSION	101.8 (33)	114.5 (34)	106.7 (34)	108.4 (36)	107.9 (34)
SEPARATION	97.0 (31)	99.3 (30)	86.0 (28)	85.3 (28)	89.4 (28)
OPERATIONAL	L 43.2 (14)	48.4 (15)	51.2 (16)	48.2 (16)	51.3 (16)
TRAINING	25.0 ( 8)	25.8 ( 8)	27.3 ( 9)	26.0 ( 8)	27.1 ( 8)
UNIT	7.8 (3)	6.4 (2)	5.0 (2)	7.5 (2)	10.9 ( 3)
ROTATIONAL	32.9 (11)	35.9 (11)	35.0 (11)	<u>29.0 (10)</u>	36.6 (11)
TOTAL	307.7 (100)	330.3 (100)	311.2 (100)	304.4 (100)	323.2 (100)

### TOTAL COSTS IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS

					•
TYPE	<u>FY80 (7.)</u>	<u>FY81 (7.)</u>	<u>FY82 (7.)</u>	<u>FY83 (7.)</u>	<u>FY84</u> (7.)
ACCESSION	59.8 (15)	104.5 (19)	95.8 (18)	99.9 (19)	102.7 (17)
SEPARATION	64.4 (16)	89.6 (16)	83.9 (15)	86.4 (16)	93.6 (15)
OPERATIONAL	76.3 (20)	106.4 (19)	128.4 (23)	124.9 (23)	138.3 (22)
TRAINING	27.7 (7)	36.2 (7)	45.9 (8)	45.5 ( 8)	47.9 ( 8)
UNIT	16.0 (4)	23.4 (4)	11.9 ( 2)	21.3 ( 4)	26.2 (4)
ROTATIONAL	147.9 (38)	<u>192.5 (35)</u>	189.5 (34)	159.0 (30)	214.5 (34)
TOTAL	392.1 (100)	552.6 (100)	555.4 (100)	537.4 (100)	623.2 (100)

\*Requested amounts

•





### APPENDIX B

### LISTING OF PCS ENTITLEMENTS

1. Mileage for privately-owned vehicle (POV).

2. Transportation by common carrier (rail, bus, air, or water, including Military Airlift Command (MAC) and Military Sealift Command (MSC) ).

3. Per diem allowances.

4. Actual and necessary expenses and cost of subsistence while in a travel status.

5. Issue of meal tickets in lieu of subsistence.

6. Travel of dependents and transportation of baggage and household goods.

7. Port handling charges for personnel, their household goods, baggage, and privately owned automobiles passing through CONUS Military Traffic Management Command (MTMC) terminals.

8. Payment of dislocation allowances.

9. Authorized transportation of dependents and personal and household effects of deceased military personnel.

10. Costs of contract packing, crating, handling, and temporary storage of household goods.

11. Cost of non-temporary storage of household goods.

12. Cost of trailer allowances.

13. Travel incident to organizational movements.

14. Expenses incident to PCS movement of any military group travelling under one set of orders from the same point of origin to the same destination.

15. Minor supplies and services incident to organizational PCS movements, expenses, and allowances incident to separation, discharge, or release.

16. Authorized temporary duty travel directly related to and an integral part of PCS movements.

### APPENDIX C

### SCHEDULE OF ENTITLEMENTS AS A PERCENTAGE OF THE TOTAL NAVY PCS BUDGET

Entitlement	1980	Percentag 1981	<u>e of Total</u> <u>1982</u>	<u>PCS</u> Bud <u>1983</u>	<u>get</u> 1984
Travel of member	25.1	36.8	34.8	34.9	30.7
Travel of dependent	5.2	4.6	3.9	3.8	3.7
Transportation of household goods	60.8	51.1	54.0	54.0	53.8
Dislocation allowance	3.1	2.6	3.0	3.1	3.0
Trailer allowance	(a)	(a)	(a)	(a)	(a)
Transportation of POVs	3.3	3.0	2.8	2.7	3.3
Port Handling Charges	1.1	1.0	. 8	.9	1.0
Non-Temporary Storage	1.8	1.2	1.2	1.2	1.2

Note a: Less than 1 percent

34 ACIP PRCJECTIONS \* 10161 68432 FILLS COMMAND JPPORTUNITY Jept Head Opportunity 1.00 Ē £≃ GATE GATE GATE GATE NON-AVIATION NUTSER OF SQUADRONS AIRCRAFT PER SQUADRON CREW FACTOR Naval Aviators Per Crew TOTAL £3822 1246 116 783 TURNER'S POPULATION <u>CIGHT ATTACK CONMUNETT</u> Naval Aviators 502 SENTCH COMMANDER Commandees L1- Commandees L1Eutenants TING STREET SEN TOTALS 5 JIJISISOLICE ST GRADE AND ACTIVITY je=t 2 그는히 2 よこと Ł £₽ Ē ACCESSIONS TO TRAINING CISPAD <u>to 131X Jestsnatca</u> Length FLEET READINESS SQUADAON TRAINING COTHAND Red Community UTAER ON-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS APLOAT ASSIENTERS Ĕ 1111111 PLOGRACK FRACTSON 10013 ALLESSICHS FIAST TOUR RETERITOR

### AVIATION OFFICER REQUIREMENTS EXAMPLE OUTPUT DATA THIRTY MONTH MULTIPLE RUN SUMMARY

<u></u>

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS "OVES THIS COMMUNITY

APPENDIX D

SURBARY DATA

### FISHTER COMMUNITY Naval Aviators

22 12	00-1	
NUMBER OF SQUADRONS Aircraft per Scuadron	CREW FACTOR Naval Aviators Per Crew	
2 09	TTON 5 X	
RETENTION	FLOUBACK FRAC	

NOILYINADA ALINOWNO:

COMMAND OPPORTUMITY .37	DEPT HEAD OPPORTUNITY 1.09	
126	182 539	934
SENICE COMERS	LT. COMMADERS LIEUTENANTS	TOTALS
911	25	
ACCESSIONS TO TRAJUTUS (1398)	LECESSIONS TO 131% DESIGNATOR First tour length	

FISTEUTION STADE AND ACTIVITY

		GRA	- 34					
	5	LCDR	CDB	SEN CD	بة •	DTAL	ACIP PROJEC	TIONS
FLEET TOURS	567	83		5		503	•	6
FLEET READINESS SQUADRON	136	14	12	0		162	6416 1	
TRETERNE COMPAND			þ	þ		53		• • •
RED COMMUNITY	m	17	~	0		27	GATE 3 1	.54
APEDAT ASSIGNMENTS	F		ŀ	þ	Į	5		
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	12	•	12	0		33		
OTHER OTHER	2	5	þ	8		991		
NON-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	J	U	0	4		46	NON-AVIATION	7 4

395 TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

MEDIUT ATTACK CUMMUNT Naval Avlators ATAU TRANUS

<u></u>

METENTION 50 X	ALACAFT PER SQUADRON Alacaft Per Squadron	22
-PLOBBACK FAPCITON 5 2	CREM FACTOR Maval Aviators Per Crem	1.00
***************************************		

	COMMAND OPPORTUNITY
COMUNITY POPULATION	<u>зеиток сонраноекз 33</u> сорнаноекз 68 L1. сознаноекз 94
	ACCESSIONS TO TRALATAR (1392) . 62

COMMAND COPORTUNITY .38		
89	302	125
COMMANDERS COMMANDERS	LIEUTENANDERS LIEUTENANTS	TOTALS
	# <del>5</del>	
- XCCESSIONS IN LEXISING CLOSED	RECESSIONS TO TOTA DESIGNATOR	

DESTREBUTION 34 GRADE AND ACTIVITY

A11A113	5	LCDR	COR	SEN CDR	TOTAL	ACIP PROJECTIO	ONS
FLEET TOURS SQUADRON SI FET READLYESS SQUADRON		25			6.2 2	GATE 1 1.56	9
TINUTT BED COMMAND	<b>a a</b>	••	<b>~</b> ~	6-	9 4	GATE 5 1.52 GATE 3 1.52	~~
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	2	~~	~~	~~	18		
UTALA Non-Aviation Assignments	~ 7	, o	è.o	24	s¤	NON-AVLATION 2	

> 213 TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

103

¤	44.										
1U4ITY	JATUNITY				ROJECTIONS	1.57	1.56		3 x	7X) 4X	*********
COMMAND OPPOR	DEPT HEAD OFF				ACIP PE	GATE 1	GATE 2 GATE 3	-	NON-AVIATION	HI 07 VEIXELE	
12	45	246	* * * * *		TOTAL	39		<b>P</b> ••	24		
ANDERS	S N S N S N S N S N S N S N S N S N S N	5			SEN CDR	n 0	00	00	26		
SABUNDERS	COMPAND.	TOTAL		111AI1	KDE CDR -	-	~	n <b>n</b>	20		
20				E AND AC		07 7	~ ~	~	20		
52	27	;		SV ERADI	5		-	~~	• •		
ACCESSIONS TO TRAINING (1298)	ACCESSIONS TO 151X DESIGNATOR	1 1 2 2 1 1 C 2 1 1 C 2 1 1 C 2 1 1 C 2 1 1 C 2 1 1 C 2 1 C		PISTATEUTION	ACTIVITY	FLEET TCURS SQUADRON	TRAINING COTTAND Red Community	PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	UTHER ASSIGNENTS		******************************

90

ł 11

ELECTRONIC GARFARE COMMUNITY Naval Aviators

SUMMARY CATA

STATISTICS STATES

5 

PLOUBACK PRACTION

RETENTION

TOTANUTY POPULATION

1.0

5

NUMBER OF SQUADRONS Aircraft Per Squadron Crey Factor Naval Aviators Per Crew

SUNNARY BATA

. . .

## CARREA JASED ASU COMMUNITY Naval Avlators

# 

	NAVAL AVIATORS PER CRE4 1.50	BACK PRACTION 5 2	ALRCAAFT PER SQUADRON 9		9 1.30 1.50	AIRCRAFT PER SQUADROW Crea Factur Mayal Aviators Per Cre4	4	DUBACK FRACTION
--	------------------------------	-------------------	-------------------------	--	-------------------	---	---	-----------------

į	ļ
i.	
È.	Į
:	l
*	
-	
Ē	(
ł	
ł.	
ł	!
į	
ŝ.	1
ł	
:	
:	
-	
ŧ	
Ē	
Ī	
ž	Ł
ž	
i	
ŧ	
:	
ŧ	Ł
ŧ	
ž	ſ
i	
ž	
ž	L
ž	
i	
ł	1
-	
*	
1	
i	Ł
Ī	
ž	ł
ž	Ł
:	t
:	
-	
ł	
ž	
÷.	
-	
-	
i	

NUTTY POPULATION

COMMAND OPPORTUNITY .30		
99	257	457
SENTOR COMPANDERS COMMANDERS	LIEUTENANTS LIEUTENANTS	TOTALS
F	53	
CREED OF ALANTAPI CT SHULSEDJA	ACCESSIONS TO T31X DESIGNATION First tour leveth	

l	
	2
Į –	
1	1
1	
	12
	1 3
L	
E	
2	Ľ
Ę.	Ĕ.
[	
E	
E	
G	
F	
Ę.	
۴	
Ē	
E	
2	
F	
	E
	Ę.
	ſ
1	
1	

		THE ME					
	5	LCDR	<b>C b R</b>	SEN COR	TOTAL	ACIP PROJE	ECTIONS
FLEET TOURS FLEET READINESS SQUADROW	851 7.3		h-		:2	GATE 1"	1.56
TAAINING COFNAND Red Community		~~	h +	<b>-</b>	==	GATE 2 GATE 3	1.50
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION		-~	<b>.</b> .	10	<b>;</b> 2		
DTHER Non-Aviation Assignments	• 0	ç	<b>,</b> 0		6 P	NON-AVIATION	2 X
		0				18282828882888888888888888888888888888	

189 TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

SUMMAY DATA

# FURCE SUMPORT - JET COMMUNITY Naval Avlators

I

KETENTION 60 X	NUMBER OF SQUADROWS Algcraft Per Squadrow	50
PLOUBACK FRACTION 5 %	CREW FACTOR Naval Aviators Per Crew	00.0

	PULATION
	D4 ALTNO
	1503
****	

COMMAND OPPORTUNITY .47	DEFT SEAD OFFORIONLIN	
42 105	997 271	805
SENIOR COMMANDERS Commanders	LT. COMMINDERS Lieutenants	TOTALS
\ \$6	65 46	
ACCESSIONS TO TRAINING CI39X)	ACCESSIONS TO 131X DESIGNATOR FIRST TOUR LENGTH	

**DISTRIBUTION OF GRADE AND ACTIVITY** 

111111		ERAT	1				
	5	LCDR	CDR	SEN COR	TOTAL	ACIP PROJECTION	5
FLEET TOURS	162	F	5	92 -	433 433	1.41	
FLEET READINESS SQUADRON	0		•	-	-		
TRAINING CORAND	9	0	*	~ •	C ‡		
RED COMMUNITY	19	~	~	~	2		
AFLOAT ASSIGNMENTS	<b>.</b>	*		<u>-</u>	;;		
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	16	4	•	•	82		
DTHER	ŝ	2	53	1	001		
NON-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	12	15	0	~	62	NON-AVIATION	
LOVER GRADE FILLS							

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

402

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

		20429						
	L1 C		200	SEN CDR	TOTAL	ACIP PRO	OJECTIONS	
FLEET TOURS SQUADAGN 3	23		~~	F -	17	GATE te	1.55	
RED COMPANY CONSTR	4.0	+~	<b>+ n</b> .	o-1	==:	647E 5 647E 3	1.52	
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION			<b>e</b> m	n-:	-=			
OTHER Non-Aviation Assignments		- 0	, O	24	24	NON-AV LATION	7 2	

121

93

VISTABUTION 37 GRADE AND ACTIVITY

5

COMMAND OPPORTUNITY DEPT HE4D OPPORTUNITY

≱₽≣

SENLOR COMPANDERS COMMANDERS -ET. COMPANDERS LIEUTENANTS

k 25

ACCESSIONS TO 131A DESIGNATOR First tour length ACCESSIONS TO TRAIMING CISVAT

319

TOTALS

LONNUMITY POPULATION

2.00

MURBER OF SQUADRONS Airchaft Per Squadron Cheb Factur Maval Aviators Per Crew

20 1 Ĺ

PLOUBACK FRACTY

RETENTION

EARLY WARNING COMMUNITY Naval Aviators

CLAR TAXANDZ

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS RGVES THIS COMMUNITY

919

DISTRIBUTION BY GRADE AND ACTIVITY

		ī	2				
	5	LCDR	CDR	SEN COR	TOTAL	ACIP PR	OJECTIONS
EET TOURS	272	217		82			
EET READINESS SQUADRON	87	~	-	-	96	GATE 1	1.38
ATATAG COMMAND	Ā		-	h	801		20*1
LD COMMUNITY	53	25	12	~	28	GATE 3	1.30
LOAT ASSIGNMENTS	ļ		-	ĥ	\$21		
OFESSIONAL EDUCATION	87	14	23	•	34		
HER	123		261	36	437		
W-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	69	80	14	40	256	NON-AVIATION	11 X

94

= COMMAND OPPORTUNITY Dept Head Opportunity 3.00 k NUMBER OF SAUADRONS Aircaft per Sauadron Chem Factor Naval Aviators per Crew 202 202 1368 MARITIME PATROL COMMUNITY Naval Aviators NOILY IDede ALINAMEC2. SENIDA CJAHARDERS Commanders LT. CJAMARNJERS LIEUTEMANTS ĥ ACCESSIONS TO TRAINING (159X) ACCESSIONS TO 131X DESIGNAJOR FIRST TOUR LENGTH h 20.2

SUMMARY DATA י ;

PLOUBACK FRACTION RETENTION

R

\$

2306

TOTALS

SUMMARY DATA

ł

"ELECTRONIC JARFARE - VG COMPUNITY Naval Aviators

RETERTION	T DO	AUASET OF SEUXDROWS Aircraft Per Souadrow	+0
PCJEBACK FRACTION	2 2	CREW FACTOR Naval Aviators Per Crew	00.0
		**************************************	

÷.	L
÷.	1
٠	
۰.	ſ
Ξ.	L
÷.	I.
۰.	L
2	ł.
Ξ.	Ł
ē.	L
÷.	Ł
۰.	I.
2	Ł
Ξ.	t
ā.	L
٠.	L
۰	L
۰.	I.
Ξ.	L
Ξ.	1
÷.	Ł
÷.	L
٠	L
1	L
Ξ.	Ł
÷.	Ł
÷.	Ł
٠	Ł
1	Ł
1	Ł
ã.	L
÷.	L
ŧ.	L
2	Ł
Ξ.	Ł
÷.	ŧ.
÷.	Ł
÷.	1
Ξ.	L
Ξ.	F
÷.	Ł
	I.
۰.	L
1	ł.
Ξ.	L
÷.	1
÷.	1
٠	Ł
Ξ.	
2	
ā.	
٠.	£
۰	1
۰.	Ł
Ξ.	L
ē.	I.
÷.	L
٠	L
۳.	L
2	L
÷.	L
٠	ŧ.
	1
Ξ.	I.
÷.	1
÷.	
Ξ.	L
2	L
ě.	I.
٠	Ł
2	1
2	t
÷	L
ē	L
	L
	L
2	Ł
÷	1
ē	1
٠	Ł
2	1
2	J.
ē	Ł
ē.	Ł
۰	L

COMMUNTY PUPULATION

	:	CORAZORRS	ŝ	COMMAND OPPORTUNITY	•0•
ACCESSIONS TO TOTA DESIGNATOR	2	LT. CONFINELS	•	DEPT READ OPPORTUNITY	5
FIRST TOUR LENGTH	58	LIEUTENANTS	176		
		TOTALS	300		
***************************************		*******************		******************************	

ž	ł
÷	ļ
1	L
÷	1
1	
Ŧ	I
1	1
÷	1
÷.	L
:	Į
÷	L
:	L
ŧ	l
1	I
÷	L
÷.	L
1	ł
Ŧ	Ļ
:	l
÷	Ł
Ŧ	Ł
*	L
÷	L
:	I
÷	ł
1	L
÷	ſ
÷	L
1	L
÷	Ļ
1	ŧ
÷	L
1	L
÷	L
Ŧ	t
1	ł
÷	L
1	I
÷	L
1	Ł
2	ł
÷	I
:	t
ē	ł
-	I
÷	L
÷	ì
1	I
÷	ł
1	l
÷	L
÷	I
1	Į.
÷	
1	ł
÷	L
-	L
÷	L
-	۱
*	1
ĩ	I
:	
ě	I
:	I
ě	1
1	1
1	ł
	L

DISTTICK ST GRADE AND ACTIVITY

OJECTIONS	1.50	1.34		9 %	
ACIP PR	GATE 1"	GATE 2 GATE 3		NON-AVIATION	
TOTAL	0	*2	 ==	84 27	
SEN COR	00	90	~ 0 '	17	
Je CDR	<b>h</b> o	- <b>n</b>		<b>0 '0</b>	
LCDR	12	~~	•~;	5	
LT	134	•	<b>- •</b>	61	
	FLEET TOURS SQUADRON	TRAINING COMMAND	PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	CTRER Non-Aviation Assignments	

136 TOTAL AWWUAL PCS ROVES THIS COMMUNITY

i

.





SUNMARY DAYS

NAMES OF TAXABLE

an and the set of the second second

FORCE SUPPORT - PROP COMMUNITY Naval Aviators

6.6 NUTRER OF BOUADRONS Airchaft Per Souadron Chem Factor Maval Aviators Per Crew 20 Ľ PLOUBACK PRACTION RETENTION

NOTAYINAGA ATINDRES.

(XASL) SHINIYAL OL SNOISSIJJE.	F	SENION COMMANDENS Commanders	14 COMMAND OPPORTUNITY	?
ACCESSIONS TO TSTR DESIGNATOR	°.2	LT. COMANDERS Lieutemants	18 DEPT HEAD OFFCRIUNITY 56	
		TOTALS	66	

PISTALSUTION OF GRADE AND ACTUVITY

				:				
ACTIVITY			191		4	TOTAL	ACTP PROJECTIO	I ONS
		1144	-					
FLEET TOURS	\$		2			0		
FLEET READINESS SQUADRON	0	0	0		0	Ð	6ATE 1 1.30	
	ŀ		┞			h		0
RED COMPUNITY	~	-	-		0	•	6ATE 3 1.42	42
APLUAT ASSIGNMENTS	$\left  \right $		F			Ļ		
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	~	0	-			~		
DTHER	0		-		<b>n</b> 1	5		2
NON-AVIATION ASSIGNVENTS	0	0			~		ONTATION O	

****************	
 ***************************************	

.............

1 TOTAL ANNUAL PCS NOVES THIS COMMUNITY

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS PCVES THIS COMMUNITY

238

	-	LCDR	CDN	SEN COR	TOTAL	ACIP PRO	JJECTIONS
PLEET TOURS		ĥ	Ļ				
FLEET AEADIMESS SQUAMRON	57	14	-	~	22	GATE T	1.57
TRIFTS CORREC	Ŗ		┝		F		
TTA COMMUNITY	=	¢	~	~	2	GATE 3	1.57
IFCJAT ASSIGNAEVIS			6				
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	13	~	4	m	22		1
	F	2	ŕ	82			
NON-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	0	•	•	-	-	NON-AVIATION	м 0
***************************************					*******	******************	
CUREN GRADE FILLS		£	ŀ				202 4

97

627 TOTALS

COMMUNELY POPULATION

Ē

PLUBBACK FRACTION

RETENTION

MELICOPTEN AS2 COMMUNITY Maval Aviators

SURKERY DATA

2.00 Ē

- NUTER OF SULARIONS AIRCAAFT PER SQUADRON CREW FACTOR NAVAL AVIATORS PER CREW

===

COMMAND OPPORTUNITY DEPT NEAD OPPORTUNITY

₽≝₽⋽

**k**⊐ F

ACCESSIONS TO TOTA DESIGNATOR FIRST TOUR LENGTH ACCESSIONS TO TRAINING CUSPAN

SURKARY BAYA

N.

### LAMPS 4K I COMMUNITY Maval Aviators

SQUADROWS 6 Er Squadrow 10	TORS PEA CREW 2.00	
AUMER OF Algeraft Pi	CYEA FACTO	
8.39	5 2	
RETENTION	PLOUBACE FRACTION	

	COMMAND DPPOSITUATTY
COMMUNELY POPULATION	564134 C34444645 66
	48
	CX6ELL BRINING OF SHU
	XCCESSI

Ł ł

COMMAND DPPOATUNITY .30	DEPT HEAD OFFORTUNITY	
7	131	706
CONNERS	LT. COMMANDERS LIEUTENANTS	TOTALS
	60 37	
VACIN ANTHINI AL SHOTSTIDI	ACCESSIONS TO 131X DESIGNATON FIRST TOUR LENGTH	

# DISTRIBUTION BY GRADE AND ACTIVITY

		SKK.					
	5	LCCR	CDN	SEN COR	TOTAL	ACIP PRC	ECTIONS
FLEET TOURS	262		2		926		
FLEET READINESS SQUADRON	- 25	13	~	~	24	GATE 1	1.46
TRAINING COMMAND	F	Ļ	-				1.17
RLD COMPUNITY	13	-	•	-	77	GATE 3	1.43
AFLOAT ASSIGNMENTS		h	0		47		
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	12	4	~	o i	22		
	ŗ		•	22	921		1
NON-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	14	2	0	27	53	NOLTAINTWON	8 X
***************************************							

278

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS POVES THIS COMMUNITY

TOTAL AMNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

104

LT LCD4 CD4 SEV CDA TOTAL ACIP PRCJECTIONS				70 29 0 63 162 NON-AVIATION 14 X	
1		*≈	¢₽	70	
	PLEET TOURS SEUADROUP	TAXIMING COMPAND Red Community	PROFESSIONL EDUCATION	UTACK Non-Aviation Assignments	

111A1134 ANN 36888 AF NOLIOSIALSI

1139

TOTALS

COMMUNELY POPULATION

28

NU-UER OF SUUNDRORS Afreaft Per Souadrom Crew Pactor Per Crew Maval Aviators Per Crew

þ 

PLOUBACK PRACTON

RETENTOR

\*

**LAMPY HE III COMMUNITY** Waval Aviators SURRERY DAYA

₹<u>₹</u>

COMMAND OPPOATUNITY Dept next opportunity

£≅\$2

SENIJA COMMANDE CCMMANDERS LT. COMMANDERS LIEUTEMANTS

<u>8</u>3 Ē

ACCESSIONS TO 131X DESIGNATION FIRST TOUR LENGTH ACCESSIONS TO TRAIRING CISPED

ANALY WANTERS CONTRACT CONTRACT

SURKAPY SKY

FJREE SUPPORT - HELO COMMUNITY NAVAL AVIATORS

<b>n</b> 0	00.0	
AUMBER JF SQUADRONS Aircraft Per Squadron	LAEV FACTOR Naval Aviators Per Creu	
ETENTION OF	PLOBBACK PRACTION	

COMRAMD OPPORTURITY	DEPT READ OFFORTONTIT	
416	168 530	904
SENJOR COMMANDERS Commanders	LT. CORFANDERS Lieutemants	T07ALS
101	==	
CHE TO TRAINING CLEAN	CONS TO TOTA DESTENATOR	
	IDMS TO TRAINING CYSSRY SUG SEMIOR COMPANDERS 89 COMPAND OPPORTUNITY 19 COMPAND OPPORTUNITY	IJONS VU TRAINING (135%) TUG SEMION CUMMANDERS 89 COMMAND OPPONTUNITY Comes 119 Command (1970) Commanders 119 Command Oppontunity Tour length 45 Lieutemants 530 Dept mead Oppontunity

<u> PISTUTION BY GRADE AND ACTIVITY</u>

ACIP PROJECTIONS		TE 1 1.26	10			
TOTAL		Ş	-	;;	╞	2
102 415		-	5	•		2
1	-	<b>n</b>	•	~ •	•	v
	11 11	6.4	0	e 1	2	5
:	-	231	0	5	20	•
4114113		FLEET YOURS	FLEET READINESS SQUADRON	THATMING COMMAND	ALD COMMUNITY	TELOXY ASSIGNMENTS

	16 2	102 -	
	NON-AVIATION	 HI OF DETRIC CLORE	
33	164		
~	82		
•	32	2	
	97 97	2	
19	• •		
PEDFESSIONAL EDUCATION	CTHER STATION ASSIGNENTS		

450 TOTAL ANNUAL PCS NOVES THIS COMMUNITY

UTRA THAT DATA

Ľ.

FIGHTER COMUNITY HAVAL FLIGHT OFFICERS

<u>۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰ ۲۰٬۰۰۰</u>

22 21	REV 1.00
TUPBER OF SEUNDRONS I ACAAFT PER SEUNDRON	REN FACTOR AVAL FLIGHT OFFICERS PER CI
	52
1 1	
RETENTION	PLOBBACK FRACTION

CONFULTY POPOCATION

	799	TOTALS	
	411	LT. COMMANDERS LIEUTENANTS	RICESSIONS IC 132X DESIGNATOR 63 First tour Length 46
COMMAND OPPORTUNITY .27	111	SENIOR COMMANDERS Commanders	211 (X/CL) PHIMINI OL SHOTSSIDD

i.	
1	
1	
L	
F.	
•	
►.	
۲.	
Γ.	
۲.	
Г	
Þ	
<b>崔</b>	
F.	
ι.	
6	
E.	
÷.	
φ.	
L	
Ε.	
Γ.	
P	
Ľ.	
Б	
Б.	
6	
fr.	
Г.	
Ľ	
h	
Ł	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	

I

	5			SEN CD	L TOTAL	TOTA ACTA BUON	ECTIONS
FLEET TOURS SQUADRON		*='		~	22	GATE 1-	1.42
ALD COMPANY A	¢≃	••	- ~ ·	••	253	GATE 5 GATE 3	1.36
PROFESSIONAL EUCATION	• =	24	• •	•0			
OTHER MON-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	× =	. <b>7</b>	59	• Ç	113	NON-AVIATION	14 2
hessektessekskasskasskassk 		*******					

367

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

SUMKARY DATA

## <u>REDIUM ATTACK COMMUNITY</u> Naval flight officers

# 

NS 13 AON 14		
YUMEER OF SOUNDER Aircaaft per soua	CREW FACTOR Naval Flight Offi	
	-	
REYENTION 74	PLOUBACK FRACTION 5	

_	1
2	
-	
÷	
21	
2	
-	
٠	
11	í (
1	
*	
2	
- 11	
1	
÷	
1	
- 5 -	
<b>.</b>	
1	
÷	
- 1	
	Þ
1	1 E
- 1	
÷.	تيا ا
	P
- 1	6
÷.	F F
- 11	
÷.	1 F
- 1	
ě	
	l P.
1	۲ ا
Ŧ	
E	
*************	
****************	
****************	

TUNITY 30	0410KIN 1*0C		
CONTAND OPPON	DEPT HEAD OFFI		
<b>F</b> 5	84 278	495	
SENIOR COMMANDERS COMMANDERS	LT. COMMADENS LEUTENANTS	TOTALS	
90	:3		
ACCESSIONS TO TRAINING CISTAN	- ACCESSIONS TO 132X DESIGNAJOR First tour length		

# PISTRIBUTION OF GRADE AND ACTIVITY

1

ACTIVITY			-				
1	5	LCDR	CDA	SEN CO	R TOTA	L ACIP PRO	DJECTIONS
FLEET TOURS	2	F	ŀ				
FLEET READINESS SGJADRON	25	4	-	-		6476 1	1.33
TRAIRING COMPAND		$\left  \right $		þ		5 JUS	
REP COMMUNITY	w	n	~	0	12	GATE 3	1.31
AFLUAT ASSIGNMENTS				ł	F		
PROFESSIONAL FOUCATION	=	m	•	0	-		
DTHER	ĥ		Ŗ		ŕ		
NON-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	15	54	-	30	11	NON-AVIATION	16 2
						******************************	

224 TTTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

SUMMER BATE

# ELECTRONIC WARFANE COMMUNITY Maval flight officers

لشكك فيقذ فبقد وشعلين ومقر ومعمد فمقمته فمقد ومقفوه ومقموه ومعموه ومعمد والبلام فلويد

	1 CREW 3.00
NUMBER OF SUGARUMS Alreaft per squadron	CREW FACTOR NAVAL FLIGHT OFFICERS PEA
16 2	
RETENTION	PLOBARK FRACIUM

COMMUNITY POPULATION

COMMAND OPPORTUNITY .25		
68	335	600
SENTOR CJAHANDERS COMMANDERS	LT. COMPANDERS LIEUTENANTS	TOTALS
F	. ,	
<u>ACCESSIONS TO TRAINING CTSTAD</u>	PICESSIONS TO 132X PESIGNATON. PIRST TOUR LENGTH	

_	
5	
2	
2	
2	
F.	
E	
Б	
E	
F.	
5	
Ľ.	
Γ	
Ĺ	
ŀ	
1	

1	5	1,004	ROJ	SEN CDR	TOTAL	ACIF TRO	SMCT132	
FLEET TJURS SQUADBOM	52	-	20	-	5,2	GATE T	1.44	
TARATA CONTRACT	-	+-	<b>b-</b>	••	¦₹	6ATE 5	1.32	
AFCORT ASSIGNTERTS PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	P #		<u>+</u>	~	₽≈			
DINER ALATION ASSIGNMENTS	-	<b>;</b> =		29	88	NON-AVIATION	16 X	1
							202 6	
			•					

278

TJTAL AMNUAL PCS AGYES THIS COMPUNITY

ļ I
SUMMARY CATA

## CARAIER BASED ASH COMMUNITY Maval Flight Officers

NURLER OF SQUADRONS 11	CREM FACTOR
Alecraft Per Scuadrom 9	Naval Flight Officers per Crew 1.60
AETENTION 74 X	PLOUGACK FRACTION 5 %

۲		
1		
÷	i	
Ŧ		1
*	1	
ē		
1		
ž	Ł	
1	1	
÷.	Ł	
5	1	
1	1	
ē	1	
1		
ě		4
ï		
1		
ā	ł	1
:		
÷.		
1		
1		•
ī		
1	L	
-		
ē		L
1		5
÷		F
1		Te.
1		H
ē		F
1		P
Ē		Γ
:		
۲		E
_		
;	Į.	5
	ł	
		DHEO:
******		DHEDO
*******		DHISO 2
		UNRO3
**********		INHEO 2
		INHEO 3
*************		INHEO2
**************		104603
***************		10,4450 3
*****************		104603
******************		INHEO 2
********************		INHEO 3
******************		INNEO 2
		INHEO3
************************		INHEOD
		INHEOD
**********************************		INHEO 3
		INHEO 3
		INUED 3
************************************		10/415/0.2
		104503
		104603
		104K03
		104K03
***************************************		IDUK02
		IDMK02
		IDUKO3
		IDUKO3
		IDUKO2
***************************************		IDUNO 2
		IDUKO)

۲	5	
COMMAYD OPPORTUNITY	.DEPT NEAD OFFORTONITY	
95 22	305	546
SELIDA COMMANDERS COMMANDERS	LT. COMPANDERS LIEUTEYANTS	TOTALS
٤	: 1	
ALCESSIONS TO TRAINING (1372)	ACCESSIONS TO 1327 PESIGNATOR First tour length	

E	
F	
any	
30	
2 2 2	
16	
HD	
ILIO	
e i n	
151	
•	

	5	LCDR	Con	85N 0	a di	TOTAL	ACIP PR	ICJECTIONS
FLEET TOURS FLEET READINESS SQUADRON	₽ ≈	<u>e</u>	20			562 562	GATE 1	1.25
TXXIMING CONSAND ALD COMMUNITY			<b>b~</b>			•:	GATE 2 GATE 3	1.19
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	<u>۽</u>	   	• •			=≂		
UTHEN Non-Aviation Assignments	**	* *	22	Ĩ		117	NON-AVIATION	21 X

253

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

- 4	4 6 NON-AVIATION .	
-~	•-	********************
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	UTREA Non-Aviation Assignments	

5 TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMPUNITY

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\* н Ф 4 GATE GATE GATE TOTAL SEN COR 0 Cor LCDA 540 PLEET TJURS FLEET READINESS SQUADRON TRAINING CORMAND RED COMMUNITY 

ACIP PROJECTIONS

FORCE SUPPORT - JET CJAMUNITY Maval Flight Officers

SUSTERN BATA

لمميد حقيد المنافع المحتور ومنابعة ومجود والمتركم ومحمد وتحمون وحمار والمحمد والمحمو والمحمو ومحتم والمع

AUMER OF SQUARONS 13 AIACAAFT PER SQUADRON 0	AVAL FLIGHT OFFICERS FER CAEN 0.00	
AETENTION 74 X		

COMMENT POPULATION

15	55
CHINA COMPANERS	r comerners E eutenants
	22
<u></u>	527 DESTONATON
ALLESSIONS IC.	ACCESSIONS TO I

₽\$.

COMMAND OPPORTUNITY DEFT NEAD OPPORTUNETY

1

107 TOTALS

VINTEREDITOR OF GRADE AND ACTIVITY

SUMMARY DATE

EARLY WARNING CORDWITY WAVAL FLIGHT OFFICERS

HUMPER OF SGUADROWS AIRCRAFT PER SQUADROW CHEW FACTOR F RETENTION

LELM FACTOR FICERS PER CREW 3.00 ĥ PLONUACE FRACTICA

NOTTAJUTAT FORMERS

ACCESSIONS TO THAIMING (1578)	40	SHEGNENHOS NCINES	25		į
		COMMANDERS	2	COMMAND OPPORTUNITY	.32
ALLESSIONS TO 152% DESIGNATOR	9	LT. COMMANDERS	201	DEPT HEAD OPPORTUNELY	- 94
FIRST TOUR LEVETN	45	LIEUTENANTS	263		
		TOTALS	511		

-	
-	
2	
4	
<	
•	
R	
2	
Ē	
و	
Ŀ	
-	
2	
2	
5	
ž	
F	
2	

AETIVITY		221						
	1	LCOP	CDR	SEN	COR	TOTAL	ACIP PRO.	JECTIONS
FLEET TOURS		<b>-</b>				252		1 17
FLEET READIMESS SQUADROM	77	m	-		-	A 2	- 2149	
TRAINING CUMMAND	,	2	-	•		-	2 3143	
RED COMMUNITY	~	<b>m</b> :	-	-	0	11	GATE 3	1.21
APECAT ASSIGNMENTS	Ļ	6	r			81		
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	=	n	•	-	0	20		
	ķ	ŀ	2			22		
NON-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	23	29	22	n	~	114	NONTALIATION	22 1
"我们的我的父母我和我的我的我的我的我有我的我的 化								
LOUEN GRADE FILLS		f	6					202 1

216 TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMPUNITY

÷.

SURARAY DAYS

MARITIRE PATROL COMMUNITY MAVAL FLIGHT OFFICERS

IDRONS 24 ILABRON 9	FICERS PER CREW 2.00	
ALACAST PER S	CREA FACTOR CREATERICS	
16 2	2 C NO	***********************
NETENTION	PLOWBACK FRACTS	

OTTADOPULATIO

ACCESSIONS TO TARITAING (1978) ACCESSIONS TO 1928 DESIGNATOR FIRST TOUR LENGTH	6 K 9	SENIDA COMMANDERS COMMANDERS LT. COMPANDERS LTEUTENANTS		COMMAND OPPORTUNETY DEPT MEAD OPPORTUNETY	=:
		TOTALS	1466		

	5	LCDR	203	SEN CDR	TOTAL	ACIP PRO	JECTIONS
T READINESS SQUADRON	5	-	-	-	5 9 5 5	GATE 1-	1.19
NING CCRARD	<b>F</b> .		ł				
ALI オフナモロリ	26	~ ;		0	37	GATE 3	1.11
XT 43516MPEVIS	Ļ		╞		F		
ESSIDNAL EDUCATION	34	•	15	•	56		
X	B						
AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	110	122	105	106	445	NON-AVIATION	27 %

629 TOTAL ANNUAL PCS MOVES THIS COMMUNITY

SURPRITY DATA

ELECTNONIC WARFARE - VG COMMUNITY Na/al flight officers

	88	
60	;;	
	CREW	
	88	
NON	ERS	
ADRO	FIC	
202	HT O	
10 H	111	
RCRA RCRA	NAL VAL	
73	63	
		ļ
F	ĥ	
07.18		
TETE		
•	•	•

ACCESSIONS TO TRAINING CISTAT	¢r.	<u>SENTJA CJAMANDENS</u> Cjamanders	72 72	COMMAND OPPORTUNETY	5
ACCESSIONS TO TS2X DESIGNATOR FIRST TOUR LENGTH	22	LT. COMMANDERS Ligutenants	174	DEPT READ OFFICATIONLITY	•
		TOTALS	513		

		Ē 7 9 :						
	5	LCDR				<b>rotal</b>	ACIP FRO	JECTIONS
FLET TOURS	133	F	2	ſ		54		
LEET REARINESS SQUADRON	J	0	0		_	0	GATE 1	1.47
RAINING CUMMAND	h	L	þ			h	2 3119	40°L
tas compunity	<b>ru</b>	5	~	0	_	•	GATE 3	1.27
ILCORT ASELOW-ENTS	P	h		ſ		-		
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	4	n	4		_	2		
THEN		F	ĥ			F		
ION-AVIATION ASSIGNMENTS	•	:	20	2		5	<b>NON-AVIATION</b>	17 %

135

TOTAL ANNUAL PES POVES THIS COMMUNITY

21
<b>COMMUNITY</b>
THES
ROVES
708
ANNUAL
TOTAL

ACTIVITY	5	LCCR CDA	SEN C	A TOTAL	L ACIP PR	IO J ECTION
T TOURS CONTABON		•0	+0		6ATE 1"	1.57
ALINE CONNERS						
COMMUNITY		-				
ESSIONAL EDUCATION	90	) <del></del> 1	0	2		
		• -	~~	2	NON-AVIATION	4

109

8

.

TOTALS

2≈

SENJON COMMERS Commanders LT. Commers LTEUTEMANTS

5

ARTERSTORS TO LATERINE LISTER ACCESSIONS TO TERA DEALEMATOR FIAST TOUR LEMETH

k

PLOUGHER PRACTICA

RETERITOR

FORCE SUPPORT - PROP COMPONITY NAVAL FLIGHT OFFICERS

SURRER DATE

COMMUNE FOR DEPUTY FOR

6.9

MAVAL FLIGHT OFFICERS PER CREW

NUMBER JF SJURDRUNS Alacaaft Per Souadron Erey Factor

큐

CCMMAND JPPORTUMITY Beft Head Opportumity

............. TO BESIGNATOR (PTR) 353 250 --628 ACCESSION RECOINERENTS BY TRAINING PIPELINE TC TAILINS 116 1221 TOTAL ANGUAL PES NOVES STATEE MAAITINE PATROL HELICOPIEN TUTALS 1

LEXALEXANT FARMER FARMER FARMER

	TOTAL	5211	765	705	269	501	285	1944		13674
RADE		474		5	R	257	-	1057		2679
ū	1022	978	F	62		134	65	355		1197
		652 i	020	592	ŝ	110	F	502	122	21129
- ACTIVITY		PLEET TOURS	NCEQUES STRUCTURES STRUCTURES	TRAIRIE CONTAND	A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR O	AFLEAT ASSIGNERTS	NCITABLE SETERATION		NON-AVIATION ASSIGNTENTS	101413

111
D ACTS
NDE ANI
37 6A
NOITURI
<b>B1518</b>

HULTIPLE RUN SUMMARY

NAVAL AVIATORS

ł

. . . 

-10 2651838108 (87019) 65 65 61 61 60 ţ BWJWJ K91 C1 211 212 13 212 212 ţ RADAR INTERCEPT JFFICER Tactisae Maticatoa Atos Maticatoa 

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*

ACCESSION PEOULAEMENTS BY TRAINING PIPELINE

............

TOTAL ANNUAL PCS ADVES

2226

TOTAL	2408	120	202	-1924	5083	
COR	114	4		315	1219	
R LCON	524 56	32	67	127	101.	
5	303	.2	103	201	284.2	
ALTATION .	FLEET TOU'S SEALORS	ALIRARDO GTE	APCUAT ASSIGHTERIS POOFESSIONAL EDUCATION	UTHER NOW-AVIATION ASSESHMENTS	101215	•

<u>нисттрее кон зорнаят (соит-)</u>

RAVAL PLIGHT UPPICERS

İ.

**HALLEY** TSTREBUTION BY GRADE AND

### LIST OF REFERENCES

- 1. Department of the Navy OPNAV-13-P-1, <u>Unrestricted Line</u> <u>Officer</u> <u>Career Planning Guidebook</u>, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., 1982.
- Chief of Naval Education and Training Letter 7300: Serial C21 to CDR W.T. Ballew, Subject: <u>Average Cost to Train Naval Aviators</u>, 4 December 1984.
- Office of the Chief of Naval Operations Letter 5223: Serial OP-130E40B/362141, Subject: <u>Study Directive for Officer Corps</u> <u>Management Study</u>, 4 September 1984.
- Information Spectrum, Inc. Draft Final Report Contract No. N0014-82-C-0851, Study of the Impact of Permanent Change of Station Support Requirements for the U.S. Navy, June 1984.
- 5. President's Private Sector Survey on Cost Control, <u>Report on the</u> <u>Department of the Navy</u>, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., 30 September 1983.
- Naval Postgraduate School Report NPS-54-81-011, Organizational Handling of Midcareer Moves: The Reactions of Navy Line Officers, by James K. Arima, September 1981.
- 7. Fox, J. Ronald, <u>Arming America:</u> How the U.S. Buys Weapons, Hervard University Press, 1974, eighth reprint edition 1982.
- 8. Comptroller General of the United States Report B-163058, Report to the Congress on the Acquisition of Major Weapon Systems, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., 18 March 1971.
- 9. Gansler, Jacques S., The Defense Industry, MIT Press, 1980, first Paperback edition, 1982.
- 10. Scholes, Michael L., <u>AIRTOURS:</u> <u>Application of an Interactive</u> <u>Computer Model to Analyze the Manpower Requirements and Operational</u> <u>Tour Opportunities of the Aviation Warfare Community</u>, M.S. Thesis, Naval Postgraduate School, Monterey, California, 1980.
- Department of the Navy, NAVPERS 15839E, <u>Manual of Navy Officer</u> <u>Manpower and Personnel Classifications Major Code Structures</u>, v. 1, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., 27 October 1980.
- 12. Information Spectrum, Inc. Final Report V-83-2693-02, <u>Aviation</u> Officer Requirements Study, Francis E. O'Conner, 31 August 1983.

13. The Brookings Institution, <u>Support Costs in the Defense Budget:</u> <u>The Submerged One-Third</u>, by Martin Binkin, 1972.

- 14. Information Spectrum, Inc. Report V-2693-01, <u>Aviation Officer</u> <u>Requirements Study</u>, by Francis E. O<sup>4</sup>Conner, 31 May 1982.
- 15. Morris, E.L., Jr., <u>An Analysis of Officer Professional Development</u> in the VP (Maritime Patrol) <u>Aviation Community with Application of</u> an <u>Interactive Computer Model for Sea Tour Opportunity</u> <u>Determination</u>, M.S. Thesis, Naval Postgraduate School, Monterey, California, June 1980.
- Department of the Navy, <u>Naval Military Personnel Manual</u>, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., 1984.
- 17. House Armed Services Committee H.R. 5167, <u>Defense Department</u> <u>Authorization and Oversight Hearings Military Personnel</u>, U.S. <u>Government Printing Office</u>, Washington, D.C., March 1984.
- 18. U.S. General Accounting Office Letter to the Honorable Jamie L. Whitten, Chairman, Committee of Appropriations House of Representatives, Subject: <u>Permanent Change of Station (PCS) Policies and</u> <u>Practices in the Department of Defense</u>, 27 September 1983.
- 19. Office of the Assistant Secretary of Defense (Manpower, Installations and Logistics), <u>Permanent Change of Station (PCS)</u> <u>Study</u>, September 1983.

### INITIAL DISTRIBUTION LIST

No. <u>Copies</u> Defense Technical Information Center 1. **Cameron Station** Alexandria, Virginia 22314 2 2. Library, Code 0142 Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943 3 3. Dr. Paul R. Milch, Code 55 Department of Operations Research Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943 Dr. Paul Carrick, Code 54 1 4. Department of Administrative Sciences Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943 Mr. Francis E. O'Conner 1 5. c/o Information Spectrum, Inc. 1745 S. Jefferson Davis Highway Arlington, Virginia 22202 1 CDR. Elizabeth Sutton (NMPC-4632) 6. Naval Military Personnel Command Washington, D.C. 20370 1 7. CDR. Charles Stoutt (OP-132H1) Office of DCNO (MPT) Arlington Annex Washington, D.C. 20370 CDR. Skip Sterling (OP-130E2) 1 8. Office of DCNO (MPT) Arlington Annex Washington, D.C. 20370 2 9. LCDR. George Parish III (OP-130E40B) Office of DCNO (MPT) Arlington Annex Washington, D.C. 20370

- 10. Ms. Charlotte Byers (Code 01A) Commander, Training Pacific San Diego, California 92147
- 11. CDR. W. Thomas Ballew (MAT-01F3) Department of the Navy Headquarters, Naval Material Command Washington, D.C. 20360

1

1

1

12. CAPT. J. Robert Ballew S. 5506 Pittsburg Spokane, Washington 99203

# END

## FILMED

3-85

### DTIC